: .'STATB OF 1LL'I.NOIS _ ) _ o . Afﬁnn and adopt (no changes) . D Injured Workers Renefit Fund (§4(d))
LA R )SS..'_' - Afﬁrmwnhchanges S [:1RateAdjusunentFund(§8(g)) |
COUNTY._OF LAKE ) o D Reverse .. . - o ' DSecondInjuryFund(§8(e)18)
- R DModxfy 7 LlptD/Fatal denied
- | IX] oN REMAND FROM S .None oftheabove
: APPELLATE COURT . o

_ BEFORETHE iiLINOIS -WGRKERS? 'CQMPEN_SATION COMMISSION

~ FRANK MIONI,

Vs .o NOI13WC6168

: ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION and

o F E MORAN FIRE PROTECTION

Respondents FE

DECISION AND OPINION ON REMAND

_ Thls matter now comes ‘oefore the Comrmssmn on remand from the Ilhnms Appellate -
Court, First District, Workers Compensatlon Division. A history of these proceedlngs useful to
_ the understandlng of this DGCISIOI’I and Oplmon follows : . '

: The parnes proceeded toa heanng pursuant to secnon 19(b) of the IIhnms Workers N
' Compensatlon Act (Act) on February 25,2014, May 20 2014, November 25 2014 and May : 22,
2015. ‘An arbitration decision was filed on August 12,2015, in whlch the Arb1trator fourid that
Petitioner proved that he suffered a work—related accident on J anuary 22,2013, when he slipped
and fell while working for Respondent The Arbitrator also ruled that Petitioner proved that he
provided adequate notice of the accident to Respondent and that there was a causal connection
between the aceadent and Pentloner s current. condition of 111 being of the right shoulder. The :
Arbltrator awarded Petitioner 75 weeks of temporary total disability benefits, and $122 244.53 in
medical expenses The parnes st1pniated to defer the issue of 8(]) credlt o

‘Relevant to today s decision, the Commlsswn observes that in so rnhng, the Arbltrator
found Petitioner’s testimony credible, noting that Petitioner “was subjected to Iengthy, pointed
and well prepared cross examination on each and every assertion” and “answered fort‘nnghtly ”
The Arbltrator added: “Despite the Petltloner s sometimes strange and seemmgly chddish
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_behavror in the eourtroorn and hlS possable anger issue wrth another w1tness for drsagr_eemg w1th
hnn the Arbttrator accepts hlS testrmony regardlng the actual facts of the ac01dent ”

S Respondent sought review of the Decrslon of the Atbltrator A majonty of the
: Comrmssron reversed, ﬁndrng that Petitioner did not sustain his burden of proving that he
" sustained a cornpensable accident, The Commission stated that Petltroner s credrbﬂrty was “the _
R critical issue,” noting that. there were inconsistencies ’oetween Petltroner S testrmony and hrs
c “medical records somé internal inconsistencies in his testimony, a_nd a fallure to report the

T aecrdent in cornphance wrth Respondent $ 1nterna1 procedures

_ In ﬁndmg Pehtloner s testrmony was not cred1b1e the Comrnrssron aiso rehed upon

- “--ftestrrnony from witnesses Scott Acred (a- field supenntendent for Respondent) and Jeff Smith (a
o superlntendent for Respondent who worked with Petitioner): when they were recalled to testrfy

. about an encounter with Petitioner that oceurred after their initi al testimony. Mr, Acred and Mr
-~ Smith both testified that Petitioner: attempted to intimidate them after their initial testimony, -

L statlng that hrs attorney had their names Petrtzoner was also recalfed to testrfy a’oout the S

L _encounter T he majonty stated I

o i “In addmon the Commrssron e1tes Pe‘ntloner 'S testlmony regardmg
ey the encounter w1th the othér witnesses aﬂer therr testtmony Although that -
o encounter is not exphertly relevant to the 1ssues addressed here Pet1t10ner S ;
_ -Ins overall eredrbrhty Petrtroner bas1catly clam}ed that the wrtnesses
. apologlzed for their testimony ‘but he told.them not to worry ‘because they
were still ‘union brothers.” However, he: then adrmtted he: could have said
somethmg else’ as well because he ¢ was pretty upset.” Petltaoner s testrmony
‘about the encounter is’ mternally inconsistent, simply does not ‘make sense
: 1ntu1t1veiy, and is completely contradicted ‘oy the credr‘nle testlmony of the
other w1tnesses mvolved in the mcrdent '

' --Petztloner sought admmrstratrve revrew in t’ne CerUIt Cou;rt of Cook County, whrch o
confirmed. the Decnsron of the Commlssron Petrtloner then appeaied to the Hlmms Appe]late B
Cour‘t ; . . ; . .

On appeal the appeilate court ruled that Respondent should not have been ailowed to
present the latter testimony from Mr. Acred and Mr. Smith. Mioni v. Iilinois Workers”
Compensanon Comm'n, 2018 IL App (Ist) 180101WC-U, § 39. The court observed that the
encounter they had with Petitioner occurred after the conclusion of their initial testimony and
thus was not relevant to that initial testimony. d. §40. The court also ruled that the latter
testimony was evidence of other wrongs or acts and thus inadmissible where the soie purpose
was to show Petrtroner was dlshonest Id. (citing T11. R Evid. 404(a)(3) (eff January 1,201 1))

! Thrs testimony was admitted over Petitioner’s objectrons See Mioni v. Illmozs WorAers Compensatzon Comm’ i,
20181L App(lst) 180101WC-U, 'n-ﬁ 20-21. : : :
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The court further noted that 1mpeachment ona collateral matter is generally Improper Mzom
2018 1L App (1st) lSOlOlWC—U 940 (citing Adams T ruck Lines v. Industrial Comm’n, l93 11.
App.3d 814,819 (1 990)) The: court additionally ruled that “the erroneous’ adrmssron of -
ev:dence the trier.of fact’ consrdered clearly relevant 1o the ‘fundamental’ issue: in the case : -
. cannot be ltarmless *RE 2 Nioni, 20181L App ( lst) 180101WC—U 941 The court concluded -
. _that “[g]wen the state of the law and the record, we fail to see how a reasonable person could '
agree wrth the Commrssmn As such an abuse of d1seret10n occurred » Ia’ '

Accordrngly, the Illmors Appellate Court reversed the crremt court’s Judgrnent vacated

N '_the Commrssron s deorsron and remanded the matter to the Cornrnrssron “so that the

-_Comrnrsswn may reconsider its decision while takmg into account only appropriate ev1denee o
- Id. 9§ 43. The appellate court specrﬁcally dlrected the Commission to reconsider all i issues butnot -
' 'evrdence of the encounter among Petttloner Acred and Smrth aﬁer they had mltlaliy testlﬁed

S The Commtsswn thus turns to recons1der thrs matter pursuant to the rnandate of the i
'Illm(ns Appellate Court.: Trmely Petition for Revrew under §19(b) of the Act havmg been: ﬁled S
by the Respondent hereln and notice given to all partles the Commrssron aﬂer considering the

- issues of accident, notlce causatlon, temporary total drsabrltty, and medical expenses both

' current and prospective, and being advised of the facts and law, affirms and adopts the. Decrslon
~ofthe Arbrtrator ‘which is attached hereto and made part thereof The Commission further .
- remands this case to the Arbitrator. for further proceedzngs fora determmatmn ofa further

-amount- of temporary total compensatlon orof compensatlon for perrnanent dzsablhty, if'z any,
: -pursuaut to 7 homas V. Industrr.al Commzsszon 78 Ill 2d 327 (1980) '

The Commrssron hereby mcorporates by reference the ﬁndmgs of fact contalned in. the
arbttratlon decision to the extent it does not conflict with the llinois. ‘Appellate Court’s opinion
“dated January 11,2019. The Cornrmssmn also mcorporates by reference the lllinois Appeliate
Court’s opinion, whrch delineates the relevant facts and analysis, attached hereto and made a part
hereof. The Commission’s 1neorporatron of the [linois Appellate Court’s opmron specrﬁcally
includes but is not l1m1ted to the facts stated in paragraphs 5 through 30 of the opinion. . See
Mioni, 2018 IL App (1st) lSOlOlWC U, 91 5-30. Any additional findings of fact in this -
Deeisron and Order on Remand Wlli be specrﬁcally 1dent1ﬁed in the drscussmn of partrcular
1ssues : o _ :

I—Iavmg reviewed the Commrss1on S prior decrs1on and the record, and following the
opinion and mandate of the llltnms Appellate Court, the Commission concludes that the Decision
of the Arbitrator was correct. In finding Petitioner proved a work—related accident, the Arbitrator
accepted the testimony of Petitioner and found it forthright, even though he characterized his
behavior in the courtroom as childish and noted that he had some anger issues with another
witness. The Arbitrator did not find the issue of whether he left a voice-mail message regarding
the incident with Mr. Acred determinative because he accepted Petltloner’s “testimony regardmg
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- the actual facts of the acc1dent as alleged along w1th how he as a Iong time tradesrnan on a busy |
: 'eonstrucuon site, handles such 1n1t1a1 physrcal 1nsults on a }Ob srte at the t1me they oceur. 272

_ Respondent argues that Petztrener was not cred1ble because hES acc1dent was
_ unwrtnessed the accident ‘occurred on: h1s last’ day of work Petltloner did not seek med1cal
~attention fora week the medrcal records do- not rnake any mentron ofan acmdent unt11 the _

i -phys1cal therapy records of February 19, 2013; Petitioner did not comply with company pollcy
" about reportmg accidents even though he was a foreman; and Petitioner threatened Respondent S
s :wrtnesses Pursuant to the ‘opinion-and manda’te of the appellate court the Commtssmn lel not
B on31der the alleged threat mentroned by Respondent SRR : :

il Regardrng Respondent s rernalnmg pomts Petmoner dld not seek 1mmed1ate medrcal
g attentron but as noted in paragraph 2 of our prior decrsron, Petitioner testified that this was
ﬁfbeeause the accident date was his last day. “fora couple of days”due to. a lack of work and he -

~ hoped the pain would go away.. Also as noted in paragraph 12 of our prior. dec151on Pet1t1oner

B testlﬁed that it was common for hn‘n 1o experience bumps: and bruises in his _}Ol“) and he did not -
: -'report all of them Petitioner’ S treatlng physician, Dr. Dragisw testified that Petrtroner told h1rn
- ofthe work related injury durmg Petitioner’s 1n1t1al visit, explarnmg that his inexperience. ‘while

o '_transrtlonrng 10 electronic records would account for the’ omission “from the medical records The |

“Arbitrator. found the doctor s testnnony on thrs pomt eredlble The Cornm1sswn agrees. _
.{'Petttroner may not have followed_ c_ompany pohey n reportmg the 1n01dent but aﬂer excludxng
: Petrtroner s test1mony regardmg the aeczdent and rts causal conneet10n to Petrtroner ] current :
cond1t1on of 1ll-be1ng TR : : : :

For all Of the aforementloned reasons the Cemmlsswn agrees w1th the Arbttrator and
ﬁnds that Petitioner met his burden of proof that he sustained a work-related accident and a
causal connection between the' acc1dent and his current condition of ill- -being. ‘The Commission
‘therefore affirms and adopts the Demswn of the Arbrtrator, whlch is attaehed hereto and made
' part thereof ' - - : '

. IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the De01s1on of the
Arbitrator 1ssued on August 12, 201 S5is hereby afﬁrmed aud adopted

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petltloner
the sum of $1,320.33 for a period of 75 weeks, that bemg the penod of temporary part1a1
incapacity for work under §8(a) of the Act

? The Commission’s original decision in this matter doubted whether Petitioner left the voicemail with Mr. Acred,
but inasmuch as the dispute pnrnanly concems notice, the Commission agrees w1th the Arbitrator that the questton
is not determmatwe . -
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay $122 244 53
S in med1cal expenses mcurred to- date subjeet to the appllcable medwal fee schedule in §8 2 of the :
: Act ' T RRRONS N o RS R

' _Page 5

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY TI—IE COMMISSION that thts case ’oe remanded to the G

S .'_Arbitrator for further proeeedmgs conmstent w1th th1s Decision; but only after the latter of

. expiration. of the time for ﬁhng a written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has expued
 without the filing of such a written request or after the tlme of compiehon of any 3ud1cza1
proceedlngs, 1f such a wntten request has been ﬁled L :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petmoner - A 3

e '_mterest under §19(n) of the Act 1f any

_ IT IS FURTHER ORDERBD BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credlt .
3 '-‘for all amounts pa1d 1f any, to or on behalf of Pet1t1oner on account of sald acc1dental m;ury

: Bond for the removal of thls cause. to the Carcult Court by Respondent is hereby ﬁxed at
. the sum of $75,000.00.: The party commencing the: proceedmgs for review in the eremt Court
i -shall ﬁle w1th the Comnusswn a Notxce of Intent to F1le for Revzew in ClI‘CLlit Court

...:.-:'-EDATED SEP 1 - 202“

L BarbaraN Flores s

: '-'BNF MP/dw '
.O 7/23/20
46

| MaTCParker R £
Disseht o

. I respectfully chssent from the majonty opimon in th1s matter Upon recon31derat10n as

. mandated by the Appellate Court, I would have found that Petitioner did not sustain his burden of

- proving he sustamed a compensable accident, afﬁnned the ‘Commission’s initial Decision and
Op1n1on on Rev1ew reversmg the Deczsmn of the Arb1trator and demed compensatlon :

_ ‘In ﬁndmg Petmoner proved a work~related aemdent the Arb1trator accepted the test1mony
of Petltioner and found it forthright, even though he characterized his behavior in the courtroom
as childish and noted that he had some anger issues with another witness. ‘The Arbitrator did not
find the issue of whether he left a voice-mail message to Mr. Acred determinative because he
accepted Petitioner’s “testimony regardmg the actual facts of the accident as alleged along with

~how he as a long time tradesman on a busy constructton 31te handles such initial physwal msults
'_on a 30b szte at the tame they oceur.” : : :
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Respondent argues the Arbttrator erred because Petlttoner was not credrbte It crtes that
‘his accident was unwrtnessed the acc1dent occurred on his last day of work, Petitioner dld not seek
~medical attention for a week, the medical records: do’not make any mention of an’ ac01dent until

- the physical therapy records of February 19,2013, Petitioner did not comply with company policy

- about reportmg acc1dents even though he was a foreman and Pettnoner threatened Respondent s
w1tnesses . S SRR . o : S

L Imtlally, it 1s estabhshed law that the Commrsszon acts as the orrgmai tner of fact as does o
the Arbrtrator Therefore the Commission is ‘not bound by the Arbitrator’s assessment of: the

! “relative credzblllty of witnesses. In this matter 1 find serious dlscrepaneres between Petrtroner s

- test1mony and the: medtcai record as well as mtemai inconsistencies within hrs tesumony 1tse1f L

~Therefore, I do not find' hls testrmony credible. T consider. Petitioner’s apparent failure to report -

“the acc1dent/1njury to be more problematrc than the Arbltrator apparently did. Especmliy beinga -
~ foreman, Petitioner had spec1ﬁc knowledge of proper procedures 1o be followed. Although there - )
- _'was ‘nmely statutory notrce the lack of comphance wrth procedures certauﬂy affects the creduhty"

_'ofhrstestrmony T R A § o T

Petttloner ] testlmony is somewhat vague about when exactiy he allegedly made the cali '

: _' to Mr Acred reportmg the accident. However, he testified he made the call when he was supposed - |

g .'_"to return to work. " He also testified that he did hot call Mr. Acred again after Mr. Acred had not: SR
BRI :yet returned his call by Ja anuary 25.. Therefore Petitioner’s: testnnony indicates he called Mr. Acred’ S

o “prior to: }anuary 25th and. therefore priof to his tmual doetor appointment on: January 29,2013
- '_'Nevertheless he testlﬁed that in his' vo1ce~ma11 message he informed Mr. Acred of his five- pound-. o

E restrlctlon There would not have been : any such medlcal restriction at that time because he had
- not seen a medlcal provrder In addition; as a foreman, Pet1troner should have been aware of the
- 1mportance of notrfyzng Respondent about the accident qulckly, even if he did not see the need to
' 'report it 1mmed1ateiy It also appears unhkeiy that Petlttoner would not have cailed Mr, Acred _
-again. aﬁer he did not return the call.’ Finally, Petitioner’s testrmony about leavrng a voice-mail

. message ‘was’ speclﬁcaliy contradreted by Mr. Acred. Therefore, the 1 am not convinced that
. Petrtloner actually eailed Mr. Acred and left hlrn a Voace-maﬁ message regardmg hls alleged "
e a001dent i - : L : .

_ “In addttlon 1 do not ﬁnd Dr Dragrslc s testlmony persuasrve He tes’nﬁed that he had :
Somewhat of a recollection’ that Petitioner mentioned a ‘work accident; that he- thought he
' remembered something about Petitioner mentronmg a work accident, but he was not 100% certain,
‘He then explained that there was probably no mention of that conversation in his records because
they had recently changed to electronic record keeplng That explanatlon is not very persuasive,
especrally considering that his’ testrmony about Petitioner’s report of an actual work accident was
equivocal at best. In thls regard, it is noteworthy that his initial January 29, 2013 treatment note
indicated that Petltroner presented for a “checkup” without any indication in the record about any
acute injury -or condition. However, at that time Dr. Dragisic found impingement in the right
shoulder, after which Petltloner probably understood the need for substantlal prospectwe
treatment ' : :
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Also of 1nterest is Dr Drag1s1c E treatment note of September 23, 2013 In that note he
wrote that Pet1t1oner reported that it was the first time he could raise his arm over his head for three

© " years. ‘That notation certainly suggests that Petitioner had si gnrﬁcant problems w1th h}S Shoulder

: pnor to the alieged aceldent ‘So the record strongly suggests that Petitioner had ongorng problems :
3 prior to the alleged aceldent of January 22, 2013 and ‘the need for substantlal ‘treatment. was
- confirmed by Dr. Dragisic’s ﬁndmgs of January. 29% . The Commission also finds relevant the fact
- that nowhere in the medtcal reoords does any . doctor refer to Petitioner’s shoulder condltlon as .
ianythrng but degeneratzve there is 1o mdrcatron whatsoever that Petitioner’s. pathology was acute

oor traumatw in nature.: ‘In'my opinion, the Comrmsswn properly reversed the Decision of the '

': - 'Arbltrator based on’ the above elted faetors 1rrespectrve ‘of mentromng h1s alleged mtrrnidatlon of L
: _.Respondent s wrtnesses : : . A . R

_ Accordmgly, 'oeeaese Pet1t1oner drd not report hzs acc:ldent ina manner preserlbed by' .
_company policy of which as’ foreman he was elearly aware, because there is no indication in the

~record that he made any ‘mention of an alleged work accident -until his initial physzeal therapy' |

: _'sessmn almost a month after the alleged accident, because there is no mdrcatron in'the medical
* records: that Petztloner s pathology was anythmg but: degeneratlve in nature, and because of
: dlscrepanoles and mconsrstenmes in Petitioner’s testlmony, 1 conclude that Petitioner’s testrmony _

o was ot credible. . Therefore, I would have found that Petrttoner did - not sustain hls ’ourden of

Lo provrng he suffered a work—related aeo1dent on January 22, 2013, reversed the Demmon of the L
o .S_Arbrtrator as the Commtssmn d1d prevrously, and demed cornpensation B '

- DLS/dw S - o bt o Je
46 A . IR R - Deborah L. Simpson
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) D Injured Werk_ers’ Benefit Fund (§4(d))
)SS. D Rate Adjustment Fund (§8())
COUNTY OF LAKE ) [ ] Second Injury Fund (§8(c)18)
None of the above

ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

ARBITRATION DECISION
19(b)
Frank Mioni Case # 13 WC 6168
Empfoyee/[’etitioncr R
v. Consolidated cases:
F. E Moran Fire Protectron '
EmployerfRespondent

An Appltcatzon Jfor Ad]ustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to each

~ party. The matter was heard by the Honorable George Andros, Arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of
Waukegan, on 2/25/14, 5/20/14, 11/25/14, and 5/22/15. After reviewing all of the evidence presented the
Arbitrator hereby makes findings on the disputed i issues checked below, and attaches those findings to this

document _ .

DISPUTED ISSUES

A. D Was Respondent operating under and subject to the Illinois Workers' Compensation or Occupational
Diseases Act?

D Was there an employee~empioyer relatlonshlp‘?

. Dld an acc;dent oceur that arose out of and in the course of Petltmner s employment by Respondent'?
D What was, the date of the acc1dent‘?

D Was timely notice of the accident given to Respondent?

@ Is ?etitioher's_ curreht .COI.I(iitiOIII of ill-being causally related to the injury?

D W_hait were Peti_t'i'oeer'.s earnings?

. [*] What was Petitioner's age at the time of the accident?

] What was Petitioner's marital status at the time of the accident?

f—(!"‘mafﬁi?ﬂcow

. Were the medlcal servxces that were provzded to Pet;tioner reasonable and necessary" Has Respondent
o paid all appropnate eharges for all reasonable and necessary medical services?

K. D Is Petatloner entztled to any prospectwe medlca! care?

L. - What temporary beneﬁts are in dlspute‘? _
OrpD - [[]Maintenance = [X] TTD

M . Should penaltles or fees be nnposed upon RespondentV
N. . Is Respendent due any credlt? '
0. D Other =~ '

ICArbDecl 9(b} /40 100 W Rando!ph Street #8 200 Chicago IL 60601 3 [2/8!4 6611 Toll-free 866/352-3033  Web site: www.iwee.il gov
Downstate oﬂ” ces: Collm.s'wlle 618/346-3450  Peoria 309/671 -3019 Rockford 815/987-7292 Springfield 217/783- 7084 :

1
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_-'On the date of acc1dent 1!22]1 3 Respondent was operatmg under and subjeet to the provtsrons of the Act
. _On tlns date, an employee—employer relanonshxp dtd extst between Petmoner and Respondent L
_ On this date Pentloner dld sustam an acc1dent that arosc out of and in the course of empioyment
: Tlmely notice of thls aecrdent was glven to Respondent : ST

. _Pettttoner S current cond:tron of tli-be;ng is cansally related to the accrdent

SIRespondent has nat pald all reasonabie and necessary eharges for all reasonable and necessary medtcal
| o services.: g PRI _ LTI
-:Respondent is entltled to a credlt of $ under Seetton 8(}) of the Act

Respondent shail pay reasonable a.nd necessary medlcal servrees of $122 244 53 as provrded in Seetton S{a} of
’_the Act pursuant to the fee schedule. L SR B NS A

Respondent shall ; pay Petlttoner temporary total disablhty beneﬁts of $1,320 33/week for 75 weeks
- oommencmg 2/’ 18/ 13 through 7/28/14, as provrded in Sectron S(b) of the Act ' R

A Respondent shali pay to 'Petltloner:. ."enaltles of : ;.'as' provrded in Sectton 16 of the Act | :_,' as provlded in’
'_Seetton 19(k) of the Act and_$ s provrded m Seotlon 19(1) of the Act L T

'In no mstance shall thrs award be a bar to subsequent hearrng and determmatton of an addttronal amount of '
' medtcal beneﬁts or eompensat;on for a temporary or perrnanent drsabihty, 1f any o =

RU[ ES REGARDING APPEALS Un]ess a party ﬁles a Petztlon ﬁ)r Rewew w1thm 30 days aﬁer recelpt of tlns de01s1on
and perfects areview in accordanee W1th the Act and Rules then ‘thIS decrsmn shaH be entered as the dee1ston of |
the Comm]_SSlon D : . ; . RN . SRR o . - .

STATEMENT or INTEREST RATE If the Commisszon rev;ews thls award 1nterest at the rate set forth on the Nonce of
Decision of Arb ztmtor shalI accrae from the date hsteci beIow to the day before the date of g payment however, if
an employee 3 appeal resuits in elther no ehange or a deerease in thrs awa:rd 1nterest shall not accrue L

Itf/fégéw&a -

. Signature of Arbitrator N . " o s - .. Date

ICArbDecifb)

AUG 1 2 2015
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The Petitioner testified that he has worked as a sprinkler fitter for 15 years. Sprinkler Fitters
install overhead fire protections systems, using wrenches and drills to install pipes, valves, and fire pumps
that weigh anywhere from a few pounds to several hundred pounds. Photographs depict the size and
type of materrais he.uses. (2/25/14.Tr. P, 14-15, PX13) After carrying the sprinkler pipe into the
building, the pipe is lifted up to the ceiling. (2/25/14 Tr. P. 9-10). A job description correlated the same
(2/25/14 Tr. P. 13-14, PX12) He was a foreman the last 4 years with addrtional duties over a fitter.
(2/25/14 Tr. P7 & 8-9).

Petitioner testified that he is right handed, and on January 22, 2013 he did not have any
. problems with his right shoulder. On January 22, 2013 Petitioner was working for. Respondent at the
premises of Abbot Labs installing a hose valve. He was carrying two 10" 6" long pipes when he slipped
on ice and fell with his right arm extended. As he fanded, he felt a jerk and pain‘in his right shoulder.
Petitioner stopped working that day and was not scheduled to return to work for the next severai days
due to a lack of work (2/25/147Tr. P1620 plus 36-37). . _

As to medical care, he asserted that when his pain did not go away he treated with his primary
care physician, Dr. Dragisic, one week later. (2/25/14 Tr. p. 15-22). Dr. Dragisic’s notes confirm_that on
January 29, 2013, Petitioner complained of pain to the right shoulder. (Px. 4). After an examination that
was positive for rmpmgement Dr Drag;src prescrrbed an MRI1, meds, and later acr and PT by February
6,13. :

As to Notice under section 6(c) , he testified that he left a voicemail message shortly after the
accident for his superintendent, Scott Acred, that he injured his right shoulder at Abbott Labs. (2/25/14
Tr. P. 22-23, 35, 39). This was contra to the supervisors testimony but Respondent did receive notice
within 45 days. None of the witnesses on either side provided testimony that any prejudice ensued
under 6(c for late notice by statute or inference given all the forthright testlmony by all witnesses;. Al
witnesses seemed il at ease testrfymg in contrary to some of the other wrtnesses recoliectron of the facts.

_ Petitioner began physical therapy February 19, 2013. February 25, Dr. Dragisic sent him to an
rthopedic specialist, Dr. Jose Perez-Sans, and advised continued physical therapy. ( PX4).

Petttzoner's initial visit with Dr. Perez—Sanz was Aprr! 12, 2013. Tr. P. 24, PX1 Notes confirm that
Petitioner presented to Midwest Orthopedic Consultants complaming of pain to the rrght shoulder as a
resuft of an injury at work on January 23, 2013 when he slipped on ice while carrying pipe and fell on his
right shoulder. (PX1).- This well known doctor performed a cortrsone mject:on prescrrbed an MRI, and
mstructed Petat;oner to remain off work ( PX1)

After an MRI oh Aorll 16 he returned to Dr Perez-Sanz on May 6. Dr. Perez-Sanz proscribed
continued PT. Petitioner was released to work light duty, ro lifting greater than 5 Ibs. (2/25/14 Tr. P.
26, PX1). Petitioner testified that his employer was unable to accommodate his restrictions. { Tr. P. 25,
PX1}.

Ld




eetmoner next saw or Perez~5anz on: June 10, 2013. (2/25/14 Tr.P. 25, PXl) Dr. Perez—Sanz S

o -_recommended surgery. (2/25/14 Tr. P25, PX1)./0n. 6/10/13 the orthopedrst recommended surgery
-which was performed. July:2 at the Center- for Mrmma[iy Invasrve Surgery The operatrve report reﬂects a"-
__drslocatable nght shoufder wrth zmpmgement (PXI) :

_ Petmoner retumed to Dr Dragrsrc on July 29 2013 for a post—surgicai follow up (2/25/ 14 Tr P
27 PX:t) " Petitioner was mformed that Dr. Perez—Sans performed a labrum repair at’ the time of _
surgery.- ( PX4). “Petitioner next saw Dr. Perez-5anz on September 11,2013, (PX1).Dr. Perez—Sanz C
: recommended physn:al therapy, medrcatron, and light:duty restrictions of no Erftmg greater than 10 ibs

- Petitioner. contmued to see Dr. Perez-Sanz.in October and November of 2013 Dunng that trme, Dr

: Perez~Sanz ordered contmued physroai therapy (2/25/ 14 Tr P 28 PX1) “

L Treatment notes of November 11 2013 rndrcate that the Dr. Perez Sanz prescnbed a course of
. work hardemng and Ilght duty (2/25/14 Tr p. 28 PXI) S e

_ Petitaoner testiﬁed that hrs January 6 2014 doc:tor s appomtment wrth Dr Perez~Sanz was
' 'cancelled because his emp!oyer was: not paysng Petitioner’s medical bills.: (2/25/ 14Tr. P, 29—30) He L
“returned to Dr. Dragisic-on January 29, 2014.. (2/25/14 Tr. P 30 PX4) who cont:nued the prescrlpt;ons :
for Vicodin, rbuprofen and off work. (2/25/14 Tr. P. 31, PX4).. o
" Petitioner testified he finished work. hardemng on February 18, 2014 (2/25/14 Tr P 28 PX) At the
. time:of the: February 25,2014 hearmg, Pe’etioner strll had pam in the nght shoufder and dlft" cu!ty w;th
' overhead iiftlng (2}25/14 Tr P 31-32) o R AT

S On May 23 2014 Dr Draglsrc prescrfbed an FCE due to Petltroner’s request to try to return to |
_ '_-'work (PX4) whzch was done on May.26. The therapist. concluded this Petitioner- put forth full effort. i
- {PX4). Petitioner was noted to be able to safer Irft 50 Ibs. {PX4) “The. Arbitrator notes the: absence of S

i .'_--any assessment of whether this conclusion considered uneven ground other body | mechamts oratrue:

e of the body mechanics of a fast paced construction environment.. ‘On June 4, 2014 Dr. Dragrs:c -
T 'was awartmg_the results of the FCE:and. prescnbed Norco for rrght shouider parn Eventually he o
: :' prescnbed addltronal work hardenrng to lmprove strength B e -

He retumed to Dr Dragtsrc on July 16 2014 whrch was post therapy at whrch t:me hiS SO
medrcatrons were ref“ lied Most 1mportantly, he was released to return to work on July 28 2014 (PX4)

Dr Drag:src test;f ed that mcluded in’ the type of m]urzes he treats are patrents wrth shoulder
m;urres (PX14 P.5) Dr: Dragrsrc testifi ed Petitioner told him that he xnjured his right shouider at work
on January 22,2013 at his initial visit, even: though his office notes do not reflect that history. {PX14, P.
11-13,27, 31)." Dr. Dragisic testified he was. relatively new to using electronic medical records which
would aocount for the records not correctiy reﬂectrng Petltloner s mrtaal hlstory (PX14 P 12—13)

The Arbrtrator carefully studred the testlmony of Ryon Hennessey M, D Respondent secbon 12
exammer, who is a spinal fellow by his testrmony but has a general orthopedic practice at Elmhurst and
Gottlieb Hospital. They key in analyzing his straight forward opinions is as follows: If you believe that
the worker told his treating doctor at the initial presentation that he hart himseif at work  albiet to the
shoulder then causal connectron isin the affi rmatrve for the worker relatlve to surgery and d!agnosrs

‘In fact the Arbrtsator S0 concludes that he: drd grve the hlstory to his doctor but as per Dr '
Dragrsrc S credrble test:mony hts unfam;ilanty to electromc recordat;on was the cause of fts omrssron



Relative to causation in the case, Dr. Dragisic reviewed the “Sprinkler Fitter Job Elements”
submitted as PX12 and stated that the document accurately reflected the work activities of Petitioner as
described by Petitioner.. Dr. Dragisic confirmed Petitioner’s work activities as a sprinkler fitter caused or
contributed to cause the mjury to his right shoulder seen at the time of surgery.. (PX14, P. 19-21),

Respondent presented the testzmony Scott Acred who testlfi ed heis a f eld supenntendent for
Respondent He confi rmed that Petitioner was a field foreman. { P. 63). e
Relative to notice under 6(c, while Mr, Acred denied receiving a voice message from Petitioner shortly
after the accident, he confirmed that Respondent was notified of Petitioner’s accident within 45 days of
the January 22, 2013 accident. (2/25/14 Tr. P. 80-83, 89). Mr. Acred also testified that Respondent
trusted Petitioner to be the owner's representative on the jobsite, run the work and be respons;ble for
the men and the material on the job. (2/25/14 Tr. P. 80-81). -

Additionally, Mr. Jeff Smith testified that he is a superintendent for F.E. Moran. {2/25/14 Tr. P.
95). Mr. Smith testified that he saw Petitioner riding a motorcycle in June of 2013. (2/25/14 Tr, P. 99).
Mr. Smith also confirmed that Respondent trusted Petitioner to be the owner's representative on the
jobsite, run the work, and be responsible for the men and the matenal on the job. (2/25/14 Tr. P. 102-
103). The Arbitrator sees no contraindication in any doctor record or FCE, or by inference, that he could
have lifted in the field per job description. Mr. Smith said prior to 1/22/13 he worked with Petitioner
conceding Petitioner did not have any problems performing his job duties nor probiems with his right
shouider. ( P. 115-116).

Respondent also presented the testimony Steve Melville, a private investigator for Gateway
Investigations. (5/20/14 Tr. P. 123). Admitted into evidence over Petitioner’s objection was

Respondent’s video surveillance taken on June 22 and 23 of 2013. (5/20/14 Tr. P. 135, RX5).
Mr. Melville acknowledged that at no time did he see Petitioner working, performing yardwork,

or installing overhead pipe. (5/20/14 Tr. P. 149-156). He also conceded he does not have any medical
training. (5/20/14 Tr. B. 143). A review of the surveiliance video md:oates there are gaps in the footage.
(RX5). Specifically, Mr. Melville conceded that the video does not accurately deplct all of Petitioner’s
activities. (5/20/14 Tr. P. 158-161, 161-164, 164-167, 168-172; 172-173, 173-174, 175, 180-181, RX5).
The June 22, 2013 surveillance shows Petitioner tossing a beanbag weighting 2-3 oz. for about 14
minutes underhand. (5/20/14 Tr. P. 178-180). The video does not show Petitioner performmg any
activities outside of Petitioner’s restrictions. (RX5). Mr. Melville conceded that the video taken does not
depict all of Petitioner’s activities during the time that he was under surveillance. (5/20/14 Tr. P. 180-
181). At no time does the survelliance show any strenuous actnvnty, heavy lifting, workmg or performmg
activities outside of hiS restrictions. {RX5). .

The testimony of the mvestngator was very weak about the nece55|ty to stop and start the
recordation. Despite these ranglings, no medical opinion asserts this worker violated his restrictions nor
can any reasonable inference be made he is a symptom magnifier especually given the medical records
content. : .

As to the issue of 8 (j credit as reflected in the stipulations, Respondent also presented the
testimony of Joyce Ward, the comptroller of F.E. Moran. Ms. Ward was unable to testify whether the
medical bifls paid by Sprinkler Fitters’ L.U. 281 plan would have been paid irrespective of any accidental
injury under the Workers’ Compensation Act. She testified essentially that the Respondent paid money
on behalf of Mr. Mioni into the union health and welfare plan according to the collective bargaining
agreement of which the Respondent isa sngnatory



The Arbltrator ;nferred th|s w1tness dld not and wou!d not have any reason to know whether the '_ D :

' 281 plan actua!ly pald any given’ medicat bilf incurred by. the above facts or in what: amount, .. Ms, Ward s
was very accurate as to her knowiedge of the payroli system along w:th the payroli and deductlons for g
.Mr Moran . _ : s : TR _ T ;

Conc!us:ons of i.aw

' (C) . Dxd an acc:dent occur that arose out of and m the course of Petrtroner’s employment
byRespondent” ' S e - : :

3 (:F)' - Is Petltloner s present condlt:oo of 11! bemg causally reiated to the m]ury’?

: Based upon the totatrty of the ewdence the Arbltrator ﬁnds that thls Petetloner sustamed an
accndent m the course and scope of hfS empioyment as al!eged in the case at bar SR
The Arbrtrator adopts the testrmony of Mr Mrom as to the facts of the accrdent :n the case at bar

- T‘ne worker was: sub}ected to. Iengthy, pomted and weli prepared cross exammatlon on each and every
- assertlon He answered forthrsght!y e g : ot AT

The dlspute regardmg wh:ch wstness was more accurate about a vorce message that day is not
determmatwe on the issue of accident. Despite the Petitioner’s sometimes strange and seemingly . . -
_ childish behavior in the courtroom and hrs possible anger issue with another witness for disagreeing wnth
-~ him, the: Arbltrator accepts his testnmony regarding the: actual facts of the accident as a!leged along with
. howheasa iong time tradesman ona busy constructron Site handles such rmt:al physrca! msults on a Job e
3 __..S|teatthet1metheyoccur e e o . _ R e e

As to causatron, proof of prxor good health and change tmmed:ateiy fo!lowmg and contsnulng
'after an injury may establish that.an: 1mpaired condition was due to the injury. - In determining that an
-_employee was entitled to compensatzon for aggravation ofa preexisting i injury the Commission in“many
prior cases - ‘noted that a- petitioner was in good health prior to the fall, he had no restrictions prior to his
fali, and folfowmg hiS accsdent I he suffered a marked decrease m hls heaith and abrhty to functron at B
work . o _ _ _ e RSN

R L rs we!l sett!ed that an m}ury is recerved in the course of employment if 1t occurs w;thm a penod _
of empioyment ‘at-a place where the worker may reasonably beinthe performance of his or her dutres,
and while fulfilling those duties or engaged in something incidental thereto Saunders V. Industaal
Commrssron 189 I!i 2d 623 727 N.E. 2d 247 244 Ili Dec 948 (2000) ' L :

Based upon the totaltty of the ev;dence in thls protracted and contentlous hearmg the a
Arbltrator finds that Petitioner’s right shoulder injury is causally connected to his work accident on -
January 22, 2013, Specaf‘ catly, the Arbitrator finds that Petitioner sustained an impingement. and a -
Iabrurn tear as a result of the work incident on 3anuary 22, 2013 that necessitated surgrcal repair. After
all was said and done no. fraud or wrong doing by any. parhcrpant was borne out; The video was "~
basically useless on any issue. The Arbitrator adopts the opinions of both treating doctors, Petitioner
testified that he did not have any problems with his right shoulder nor seek treatment to his right -
shoulder. The Arbitrator finds Petrtroner’s test:mony to be persuasrve despzte h|s sometsmes Juvemle
presentatlon ' :



s
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Dr. Perez-Sans diagnosed Petitioner as suffering from an impingement and labral tear of the right
shoulder. Dr. Dragisic testified that the right shoulder conditions were work related. (PX14). The
Arbitrator notes that Petitioner’s co-worker and supervisors confirmed Petitioner’s testimony concerning

his job activities and physical condition in January, 2013.

(D) What timely notme of the acc:dent gwen to Respondent'?

“ Illmons statute requnres that a c!almant rnust prowde notlce of an accident” to the employer as
soon as practicable, but not later than 45 days after the accident.” 820 ILCS 305/6(c). Section 6(c)
further holds that “[nJo defect or inaccuracy of such notice shall be a bar to the maintenance of
proceedings on arbitration or otherwise by the employee unless the empioyer proves that he is unduly
prejudiced in such proceedings by such defect or inaccuracy.” Id. Hllincis courts have ilberaiiy construed
Section 6(c), statmg that “a.claim is only barred if no notice whatsoever has been given,” and “[i]f some
notice has been given, but the notice is defective or inaccurate, then the employer must show that he
has been unduly prejudiced.” Tolbert v. IIl. Workers’ Comnensatlon Commsssu}n 2014 I App {4th)
130523WC (2014). _

~ There is no dispute that Petitioner filed his Application for Adjustment of Claim dn February 25,
2013, within 45 days from the January 22, 2013 date of accident, Furthermore, Respondent’s
Superintendent Scott Acred aclmltted F.E. Moran was aware of the incident WIthm 37 days of the

accident. :

Based ljpon the totality of the evidence and a clear reading of the statute 6(c, The Arbitrator
finds that Petitioner gave proper notice of the claim of injury to Respondent.

(7) Were the medical services that were provided to Petitioner reasonable and

rlecessary‘?

Pet;tloner submitted the foiiowmg medlcal expenses w:thout ob]ection concemlng reasonableness
and necessity: .
Exhibit 5 — Madwest Orthopedm Consultants $2 518 00
Exhibit 6 — Therapy. Providers: $5,157;
Exhibit 7 — Dr. Peter Dragisic: $3,805;
Exhibit 8 ~ Advanced Orthopedic and Spine Care: $26,794.00;
Exhibit 10 ~ Center for Minimally Invasive Surgery: $49,300.00;
Exhibit 11 — Chicago Ridge Radiology: $1,061.00;
Exhibit 15 — Epic Surgical Solutions: $1,550.00;
Exhlblt 16 — ATI Physrcal Therapy $32,059.53.

The Arbitrator finds based: upon the totalaty of the evidence Respondent is liable to the Petitioner
his attorney under section 8 for medical expenses by the above providers per fee schedule.

(L) What amount of compensation is due for Temporary Total Disability?

Based upon the totality of the evidence, The Arbitrator finds that Respondent is liable to pay to
the Petitioner and his attorney temporary total disability benefits from the date of Dr. Dragisic’s initial off
work slip, February 18; 2013, to July 28, 2014 when he was released to work by Dr. Dragisic in the

amount of $1,320.33 per week for 75 weeks.
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STATE OF ILLINOIS _ ) : : D Afﬁrm and adopt (no changes) D Injured Wor'ke'rs Beneﬁt Fund $4d)
' . )SS. . Afﬁrm with changes ' D Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g))
COUNTY _OF _CO_QK ) D Reverse . D Second Injury Fund (t;S(e)iS)
| S | | ] pro/ratal denied
: DModify IR &None ofthe above - |
'BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSI_ON |
: Ar:tur:Ku_'Sto'sz,
Petitioner,' '
v . NO:18WC 25095

L 1111n01s Home Improvement DBA e
o Best Brlckmasters ' -

S _Responde_nt. _

'DECISION AND OPINION ON REV_IEW

T 1mely Pet1t10n for Revxew under §19(b) havmg been ﬁled ’oy the Petitioner herem and
notice given to all parties, ‘the Commission, after consuiermg the issies of employer/employee_
“ relationship, accident, ‘benefit rates temporary disability and bills and being advised of the facts
and law, changes the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms- and adopts
the Dec131on of the Arb1trator Wthh is attached hereto and made a part hereof ' -

As 1ndlcated above thls matter was arb1trated under §19(b) of the Act The Arbxtrator
found that Petitioner failed to meet his burden of proving a compensa‘ole accndent - The
Comm1331on affirms that finding. However, in the “ORDER” section of the decision, the
Arbitrator included the language that “in no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent
hearing and determination of any additional amount of medical benefits or cornpensatwn for a
temporary or permanent disability, if any.” Because the claim was denied in its entirety, the
matter will not be remanded for determination of any additional benefits and therefore the
decision does bar subsequent awards. Therefore, the Commission strikes the a‘oove quoted
language from the “ORDER” section of the Decision of the Arb1trator :
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_ IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Dee1s1on of the.
Arbitrator filed September 10 2019 s hereby afﬁrmed and adopted Wlth the changes noted
above ' ST . N . : : :

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have credlt
.. for alI amounts paxd 1f any, to or on behalf of Pentloner on account of sald acc1denta] mjury

There is no bond for the removal of thls cause to the ercult Court by Respondent The =
party cornmencmg ‘the proceedmgs for review in the Clrcmt Court shali ﬁle wzth the Commzssmn
s Notice of Intent to Flle for Rev1ew in C1reu1t Court - : :

DATED: ~  SEP 1-12020 S Keboras. OF. Kemp
07/2320 - - -~ . DeborahL.Simpson -
CODLSAM e
46

N .'M'EIII_’C 'P__a:rl_'('evr
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.S'i_‘A_TE OFILLINOIS AR 1 o - _ Dlnjured Workcrs Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))' .
o . : _')_S_S-_ Lo L DRateAdJustmentFund(QS(g)) " '
COUNTY OF __CIO. ._O_K ) . B S o .Sccond Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
R O ' : DR EﬂNoneoftheabove R

ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COVIPENSATiON COMMISSION o

. ARBITRATION DECISION.
REEREL I g 19(") Sl
AtturKustosz = Casc# 18wc 025995
.-Employécﬂ’ctit'ioncr._- P o SRR

: !imols Home tmgrovement DBA Best Brickmasters

_EmploycﬂRcspondem Lo BRI R e ES S HT

; AnAppl:catwn for Adjustment of Clazm was ﬁled in ihns matter and a Notzce of Hearmg was malled to each
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable Jeffrey Huebsch, Arbitrator of the Commission, inthe city of

“ Chicago, on March’ 12, 2019. After: reviewing all of the evidence presented the Arbitrator hereby makcs
_ﬁndmgs on the dxsputed 1ssucs checked below and attaches those fmdmgs to thzs document

-'Z_D_isf' ' __l-:n ISSUES

- Was Respondent operatmg under and sub_]cct to the Illmow Workers Compensanon or Occupatmnal
- DiseasesAct? . : o : . SRR
- Was there an employee-employer rclatlonshlp‘? :

<] Did an acczdent occur that arose out of and m the course of Petmoner s employment by Respondent”
D What was the date of the accxdent’?‘ ' L - '

- Was tlmely notxce of the acc:dent given to Respondcnt'? a

IE Is Pet:t:oner s current COIldltIOII of 3li-bcmg causally related to the mjury"

& What were Petltloncrs earmngs‘? S S

. What was Petmcner‘s age at the nme of the acc1dent'?

D What was Petxtloner s rnantal status at the tlme of the acc1dent‘?

by :_ m-:n-_m. Uom

!Z Were the medlcal semces that were prowdcd to Petltloner reasonabic and necessary" Has Respondent
pald all appropriate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services? :

K. % Is Peutloner entxtled to any prospecnve medmal care”

L. - What temporary beneﬁts are in dispute?
C}1PD D Maintenance XT1D

M. D ShouId penaltles or fces be n'nposed upon Respondent‘7
N. D Is Respondent due any credit?
0. D Other

[CArbDecI?{b) 2010 100 W Rando&:h Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60601 312/814-6611 Toll-free 866/352-3033  Web site; www.iwec.il. gov
Dovmsrate c:ﬂ?ces Coliinswiie 613/346 3430 Peona 309/67! 3019 Rockford 815/987 7292 Sprmgf Teld 217/785-7084 _

1
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FINBINGS

On the date of accident, 8/11/18, Respondent was operating under and subject to t'he. provisions of the Act.
On this date, an'empit)yee-em'ployer_ relationship did not exist between Petitioner and Respondént.

On this date, Petitioner did nof sustain an acéident that arose out of and in the course of émployment.
Timely notice of this accident was given té Respondent. '

Petitioner's current condition of ill-being is éausally related to the accident.

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner eamed $21,810.00; the average weekly wage was 30.

On the date of accident, Petitioner was 52 years of age, married with 0 dependent children.

Respondent has not paid all reasonable and necessary charges for all reasonabie and necessary medical
services. : o :

Respondent shall be given a credit of $5,600.00 for TTD

. $0.00 for TPD, $0.00 for maintenance, and $0.00
for other benefits, for a total credit of $5,600.,00.

Respondent is entitled to a credit of $0.00 under Section 8(j) of the Act.’
ORDER

Claim for compensation denied. Petitioner failed to prove that he had an employee/employer
relationship with Respondent.

In no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of
medical benefits or compensation for a temporary or permanent disability, if any.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after feceipt of this decision,

and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of
the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of
Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if
an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue.

~ September 9, 2019

Date

ICAbDec19(b)
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o AKustosz v, 'Zliinois.':}.{otne: I'n'l:g"foyeinent, 'et'e._, 18WC (}25095 .

1NTRODUCTION

Atthe begmnmg of fhe tnal Petmoner made a mot:on to amend the Appheation and name the - :
Respondent as: Hlinois Home: Improvement DBA Best Bnckmasters The Motton was granted A copy
: of the Amended Appllcatlon was admztted as Arbztrator 8. Exhlbtt 2 R _

Respondent made an oral motlon to dlsxmss the case based upon Petztzoner $ etectlon to exc]udc hlmseif
from coverage under the Act under §3(20) of the Act The motton was demed and the case proceeded to - B
: tnal on the merzts ' R L . o _ _

o _Pentloner testxﬁed vra Pohshf'Enghsh mterpreters
The Arbatrator redacted Tax I ‘D and bank account numbers from the fotiowmg exhxbats in order to
: _"comply wzth Supreme Court Rule 138 PX 3, PX4, RX 4 and RX 5 L SRR

FINDINGS OF FACT

Petmoner test:ﬁed that he worked asa roofer exeiuswely fer Best Bnckmasters and Himms Home Improvement
'begznmng in December of 2017, In addition to performing work as a.roofer, he protected materials from water
damage, xnstalled parapets and drams, demolished brick, and did carpentry work Some of the _]obs Petltloner
‘worked on ‘could be: completed by. himself, while other _)ObS required two or more people because of safety

o reasons and practlcahty Petit:oner testlﬁed he had an exciuswe contraetual agreement to only perfonn work

-_-Petmoner testlﬁed he always reported to work at Respondent ofﬁee, iocated at EIsten and thero in Chleage, at '
6:30 in the ) morning and punched in on a time card.’ Petitioner would then receive his work assignments for the
day and would come back after finishing his work to punch out. Petitioner testified he kept a log sheet of the
times and locations of the 30bs1tes he worked on and sent picture updates of the work to Mr. Wrobel. ‘Petitioner
used Respondent’s tocls and machines that he could not transport | himself, mciudmg 30 footladders, a break _
muachine’ welghmg approxxmately 400 pounds, drills; crowbars ‘paint, and brushes. - ‘Petitioner testtﬁed he. was -
reqmred to wear a shirt with Respondent 's company iogo on'it. He also wore his own shms at tlrnes Petmoner
was net allowed to speak thh Respondent’s cl:ents at the Job sxtes ' S :

Petmoner testlﬁed he was never self—empioyed never had employees and never “had an mcerporatlon » addmg '
he was not able to do so without a car. ‘Petitioner demed making Respondent aware that he had hisown -
company. Instead, Petitioner testified he utilized an entity known as Artur: Kustosz Construction for tax benefits
only. The Arbitrator notes Petitioner provided three different responses as to when he opened a bank account -
for Artur Kustosz Construction. ' The Arbitrator finds that Petitioner established the Artur Kustosz Constructlon
bank account three months before December of 2017 when he was dnvmg trucks :

Petttxoner testzﬁed that he was pazd $30.00 an heur by Respondent and was oornpensated ona bz-weekly basis
viachecks made out to Artur Kustosz Construction, (PX 4) Petitioner testified that his paychecks were initially
made out to Artur Kustosz, but Respondent later changed the payee to Artur Kustosz Construction. Petitioner
stated taxes were not taken out of his paychecks at his request. Petitioner said he sometimes received cash that
he described as “some chump change” and “some small amount of cash” in an envelope with his paycheck. -
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Petitioner thought the cash payments came from Peter Zieba; but also testified he never received cash from Mr.
Zicba.

~ Petitioner denied he was the sole proprietor of Artur Kustosz Construcion. Réspondant introduced Petitioner’s
tax forms and completed W-9 tax form for “Artur Kustosz Construction™ stating Petitioner was the sole
proprietor of this company and sighed by him, under the penalties of perjury. (RX 4}

Petitioner identified his tax returns from 2015-2018. (RX 5) When questioned about his 2018 tax returns,
Petitioner said he was not aware that he had listed his occupation as self-employed, and that this was incorrect.
Petitioner testified he completed a Schedule C-EZ (Form 1040) for a sole proprietorship listing only himself as
the proprietor, his home address for the business address, and “Construction” as his principal business.
Petitioner further completed a Form 1040 for self-employment tax, a qualified business income component

worksheet, and qualified business income deduction simplified worksheet for his construction company.
Petitioner signed the tax forms. (RX 5) : : - .

Petitioner testified his entire income from the year 2018 came from Respondent, and that he completed the
calculations himself because he did not receive any paperwork or a 1099 from Respondent. A 1099-MISC form
that he received from Respondent listing nonemployee compensation in the amount of $24,535.00 paid to his
sole proprietorship, Artur Kustosz Construction. (RX 5, RX7) Petitioner admitted to declaring a net profit
from his sole proprietorship of $40,000.00. Petitioner did not agree with the amount declared. He later
estimated he made approximately this amount, believing the “chump change” he received in cash boosted his
income to approximately $40,000.00. Petitioner also attached a 1099-MISC form from Peter Zieba Consulting,
listing nonemployee compensation in the amount of $1,390.00 to his sole proprietorship, Artur Kustosz
Construction. {(RX 5) Petitioner initially testified he received this compensation. He later testified he never

received a check from Peter Zieba Consulting. Petitioner acknowledged that he never received or completed a
W-2 form for the 2018 tax year.

Regarding Petitioner’s tax returns for the 2015, 2016, and 2017 years, Pe_titioner'list_ed his occupation as self-
employed, completed a Schedule C-EZ (Form 1040) for a sole proprietorship listing himself as the proprietor,
his home address for his business address, “Construction” as his principal business, and completed a Form 1040
for Self-Employment Tax. Petitioner testified he worked for somebody in 2017, but he did not attach a W-2 or
list any income received from employment wages for either of the three years. (RX 5} .

Petitioner testified he was not requested by Respondent to obtain his own workers’ compensation insurance.
When provided with a copy of the policy listing his construction company and home address at trial, Petitioner
initially testified that he had never seen these documents before. Petitioner testified the policy he paid for was
sent to Respondent and not him. Petitioner denied stating on the policy that he was a sole proprietor of Artur
Kustosz doing business as Artur Kustosz Construction. He denied that he excluded himself on said policy as a
solé proprietor. Subsequently, Petitioner admitted he did in fact receive a copy of the policy at his home. The
policy does show that Petitioner opted out of coverage for himself. {RX 3} :

Petitioner testified that on August 11, 2018, he was using an approximately five foot ladder provided by
Respondent to hang drywall, when the ladder broke underneath him causing him to fall. Petitioner testified that
one of the supports on the ladder was broken, and the other one was barely attached. Petitioner was working
with a co-worker at the time of the fall. Petitioner said that he injured his right leg when he fell.

4
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"Aﬁer the fall an ambulance was called and Pettttoner presented to the Emergeney Room at St Franc:s Hospltal

S Petttloner remembered he was given pain medication that he described as “real strong,” ‘which affected his.

memory. "He did remember askmg for an interpreter which he said he did not receive. The medtcal records -
; state Pettttoner requested and then reﬁtsed a language mtetpreter (PX I) R SRR

_ Pettttoner dtscharged from St Franms on August l? 2{}1 8 On August lt 2018 Pettttoner was notecl in’
> _the ﬁeld to have hypotension with blood pressure 90740, Petttloner reported he felt d:zzy and then missed a- step
- on the ladder which caused him'to fall, Petitioner had an anemia evaluation the same day that documented a

o past medical hxstory sagmfican’t for hypertens:on and gout for whtch Petitioner had been. takmg medtcatton L

: .dali Petttloner was said to endorse havmg some dlzzmess jUSt prtor to htS fall from a ladde_r There is no -

o .On August I3 2018 Pettttoner underwent rtght knee surgery by I}r Saper T he procedures performed 1ncluded

~aright bzcondylar ttbtal plateau fracture open reductlon and mternal ﬁxatton, and a nght iateral menzscus repatr
_-_(PXl) B R _ = SRR -

- On August 16 201 8 Pet:ttoner underwent a colonoscopy by Dr Chorba Dr Chorba recorded a hlstory that _

_ Petltzoner was havmg trouble with his rectum and he knew about it for a couple months and had been feelmg :
'weak pnor to hIS fall (PX I) Petmoner demed thts h;story SR : o :

B Subsequently, Petttloner treated thh Dr Saper between September 11 201 8 and February l2 2019 (PX 2)
: "Pettttoner recewed one m_;ectxon tnto hls l-:nee and has z:emamed off work ' ;

Petlttoner testlﬁed that he has pam He has dlfﬁculty standmg up He has dtfficulty walkmg He dtd not

' complete PT ‘due to financial’ reasons, He can’t afford PT. He hasno health insurance, He has recewed ST

-$5,600.00 in payments of TTD, as is shown on ArbX 1. He had no pI‘lOi‘ tnjunes to hts nght knee and no S
subsequent m_lurtes He dtd have aprtor foot mjury I s o

Enc Wrobel test:ﬂed that he has been the Presxdent of the Respondent for approxtmately 24 years wzth _]Ob
diities mcludmg day-to-day operattons, meeting cizents creatmg estimates, and overseeing office tasks and -
payroll (T.115-116). llinois Home Improvement specnaltzes in extérior renovation of bulldmgs repairs: of
exterior walls, siding,’ windows, cornice repairs, and some minor roof repairs assoc;ated with masonry work.
‘Wirobel said that Best Brickmasters is a division of the Respondent speczahzmg in masonry work: Respondent
‘hasten etnployees who are d1v1ded into. different crews, some of whom specnahze in brick and masonry work,
and some of whom perform repairs on the outside of structures - - repairs of the roofing, some light framing,
siding, and windows. Respondent also had sixteen mdependent subcontractors during the 2018 year. These '
mdependent contractors performed a number of tasks, mcludmo electnman work plumbmg, heattng and =
cooltng, pamtmg, dry wallmg, masonry, and rooﬁng ' S AR : SRS

Wrobel testlﬁed that he ﬁrst met Petlttoner when he mterv1ewed htm in March of 201 8 Dunng the mtervxew
process, ‘Petitioner told Mr, Wrobel that he had approx:mateiy twenty years of expenence in construction,
hstmg off a ‘number of skills, mcludmg frammg, window installation, roof ; ‘repairs, SIdmg, drywaii repairs, and
painting. ' Mr. Wrobel testified Petitioner advised him that he owned his own construction company, Attur
Kustosz Construction, under which he had been working as an mdependent subcontractor for many years.
Wirobel testified that Petlttoner and his construction’ company agreed to perfotm work for Respondent through a
verbal agreement 'I'hts was not an exciuswe worklng relattonshtp and Pettttoner was free to work for other
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construction companies as well. Respondent had similar verbal contracts with
subcontractors. - : ' _ :

Re_spdndent rec';uirés independent s_ubcont_fdctors to hév_e workers’ éompens_a_t_i_o_n msurancc Wi‘qbel_ stated that
Petitioner provided him with documentation that his company, Artur Kustosz Construction, obtained workers’

compensation insurance and'a certificate of liability of insurance. (RX 3). Wrobel testified he did not direct
Petitioner to a specific insurance company or offer to pay for half of the policy Petitioner obtained.. Petitioner
did testify that Wrobel agreed to pay for half of the prernium. SR '

According to Wrobel, Re_spondént utilized Artur Kustosz Construction for window installation, siding, roof
repairs, painting, and light framing. According to Wrobel, some of the jobs Petitioner could perform: on his
own, bt a majority of the jobs required more than one person for safety reasons and practicality. Petitioner
never worked for Best Brickmasters, as he was not qualified as a mason.. If Petitioner was looking for work, he
would show up fo Respondent’s office in the morning and ride as a passenger in Respondent’s vans to the
jobsite. Wrobel said Petitioner did not have his own means of transportation to get to the jobsites because of his
financial situation. Wrobel testified this was not uncommon, as Respondent also offered to assistin
transporting other independent subcontractors to and from the jobsites from time to time. No one was required

to ride in Respondent’s vehicles to the jobs.

Wrobel testified that Respondent’s employees were required to report for work when scheduled and, if they did
not, they would be subject to reprimand or possible termination. Wrobel testified that, because Petitioner
worked on an as needed basis, he was not subject to discipline if he did not show up for work. For example,
Petitioner did not show up to the job site for a week or so and was not disciplined or terminated.

Mr. Wrobel testified that, in regard to a construction site, all of the work being performed by Respondent’s
employees and independent subcontractors required some supervision. A foreman was present on the job site to
ensure that the work being completed was done correctly. Petitioner was assigned work with an end result in
mind, but it was up to him to determine how to perform the work in order to achieve the end result, given his
approximate twenty years of experience. If Petitioner completed work that did not meet the end result required,
then: Respondent would offer suggestions or input to help or assist Petitioner in completing the work. Mr.

Wrobel testified that very often Petitioner offered his own advice on how to complete a job because of his
experience, and Respondent would take this advice into consideration. o

Wrobe! testified that Petitioner was not required to wear an lllinois Home Improvement or Best Brickmasters
uniform. Instead, Respondent handed out branded clothing regularly, and almost anyone could obtain a shirt
with Respondent’s name on it, including people who do not have any relation to the work place. Mr. Wrobel
also testified Petitioner was required to bring his own hand tools and some select power tools to the job, as is

expected on almost all job sites. Petitioner was not required to supply his own ladders, heavy machinery, paint,
or drywall. Mr. Wrobel said these materials were also supplied to other independent subcontractors, and

Respondent did not require anyone to transport these r:_iate;ial_s to the jobsite on their own. .

Régafdiﬁg cdmpen'sation, W_rbbél testified that dﬁririg his initial inferview _with P_etitiorigr, they réached an oral

agreement that Petitioner would be compensated on an hourly basis and both parties would keep track of the
hours worked to ensure Petitioner’s time spent on a jobsite was accurate. Petitioner was paid on a bi-weekly

basis at $28.00 an hour, checks were made out to Artur Kustosz Construction, and taxes were not withheld from
the checks, per Petitioner’s request. (RX 1; PX 4) Wrobel testified that Respondent paid its employees on a bi-

weekly basis at a similar or lower rate than Petitioner, checks were made out to the employees themselves, and
_ _ . ) _ _ _
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;' L _taxes were thhheld ﬁ'om thexr paychecks Respondent 1ssued employees a W 2 foxm However, because
. Petitioner was an- tndependent subcontractor Respondent obtamed a W 9 from Pent;oner and 1ssued hrm a
"1099(RX4RX7) i _ i L B R e

B 'Respondent zarely performed work on Saturdays however Petltroner requested to perform work on August 1 1
" 2018, which wasa Saturday, to finish: a jOb that he had lasted several days Spec;ﬁcaily, Petitioner was
- 3rrequestmg to finish up some drywall ‘painting; touch-ups and ‘moving some equipment from the job site.: For

o safety reasons; Wrobel sent one of Respondent § employees to drive their truck with Petitioner to the _]Ob site,

‘and to help Petitiorier load equipment onto the truck which sometimes requ:red two people. Wrobel statedno
- ‘onewason the job site to supervise ‘the manner in- whrch Petttroner was performmg the work It was up to E S
o Petmoner to determme how to complete the work m order to aehreve the end result . B
e CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
.' "The Arbltrator adopts the above Fmdmgs of Fact in support of the Conclusrons of Law that follow : _:' I

To obtatn eompensatlon under the Act Pentloner has the burden of provmg, by a preponderance of the ev:dence, g
- :'all of the elements of tus clalm O’Dette v Industnai Commxss;on, 79 Ill 2d 249 253 (1980) : .

_-Dec;sxons of an arbltrator shal] be based excluswely on evrdence m the record of proceedmg and matenal that has o
"oeen ofﬁcxally notlced 820 ILCS 305! l l(e} gh : R o

' ;; At the begmmng of h;s testlrnony, Petltroner was advzsed of the proper procedures unitzed when tesnmony via :_"; |

- aninterpreter is elicited. He said that he: understood There were times where he was non-comphant and he had
_to be instructed to not volunteer and to answer the questxon that was asked. The ‘Arbitrator does not. ﬁnd that.

' 3Peuuoner 15 unsophxstaeated He was be;ng evasive.  Wrobel’s: testimony is found to be credible: To the extent
~that Petitioner’s testimony differs from that of Mr. Wrobel and the medacal reeords the testlmony of Wrobel and
'the medxcal reeords are beineved by the ﬁnder of fact herem e S ST, :

In support of the Arbttrator’s declslon relatmg to (A) Whether Respondent on August 11 2018 _

' was operating’ under the Ilinois Workers®. Compensatmn Act and (B); Whether the re]auonship
‘between Petitioner and Respondent on that date was one of employee and employer, the -j':r L
Arlntrator finds : : ST : :

Respondent Was operatlng under the Act on the date of acmdent per §§3(l) (2) {8) and (15) of the Act

The Arhxtrator 1s not 1mpressed w1th the relattonshlp that Petzt:oner and Respondent elected to structure for work
performed by “Petitioner for Respondent. Both Petrttoner and Wrobel knew the consequences of the
subcontractor/contractor relatlonshtp that they entered ‘into. They both were trying to_avoid the expenses of
payroll taxes, unemployment taxes and- wage. and hour laws, along ‘with workers’ compensation insurance
premiums in structuring their relationship as they did. Petitioner and Wrobel do have a level of sophistication
regarding construction business relationships and that persuades the Arbitrator that neither took advantage of the
other intheir relattonshtp Shame on them both for not det’mmg the relatronsth ina wntten agreement '

As to the issue of Employee/Employer, the Arbrtrator ﬁnds that Petmoner faxied to prove that he had an'
employee/employer relatlonsth thh Respondent _ _
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According to the Supreme Court, an employment relationship is a prerequisite for an award of benefits under
the Act. A fact specific inquiry is required to determine whether an employment relationship exists. The
Parties designation of their relationship is not controlling, but may be considered, along with the following other
factors: 1.) Respondent’s right to contro! the manner in which Petitioner performs the work; 2.) Does.
Respondent dictate Petitioner’s schedule? ; 3.) Is Petitioner paid hourly, or on a per job basis? ; 4.) Are taxes
and social security withheld from the payments to Petitioner? ; 5.) Does Respondent’s business encompass
Petitioner’s work? 6.) Can Petitioner be discharged at will? . Roberson v. The Industrial Commission, 225 IIL
2d 159 (2007) ' . _ SR o .

First, Petitioner’s tax forms establish that he ran his own construction business since at least 2015, Petitioner
established the bank account for Artur Kustosz Construction at least 3 months before entering into any
relationship with Respondent. This is persuasive evidence that Petitioner was an independent contractor and
that he intended to be so. - : B

Regarding the issue of control of the manner of the work, the proofs do not show that Respondent dictated or
controlied the manner in which Petitioner performed construction tasks. While Respondent supplied job.
materials, ladders and heavy equipment like a break press, this is more of the nature of the construction project.
There was no evidence that Respondent was monitoring Petitioner’s work in a detailed manner. Respondent’s

Jevel of control over Petitioner’s work does not persuade the Arbitrator that Petitioner was an employee of
Respondent: ' ' S g

Petitioner’s schedule was dictated by when he showed up for work at Respdnden_t_and whether there was work
available. He was free to wotk on other jobs and was not disciplined for not showing up for work on any given
day. This factor does not support an employment relationship.

Petitioner and Respondent agreed that Petitioner was paid hourly, with both Parties monitoring his hours. This
factor does weigh in favor of Petitioner being an employee, but given the haphazard attendance requirements of
the relationship, it will not persuade the Arbitrator that Petitioner was an employee (he could not be paid ona
per job basis if it was not certain that he would show up to finish the work). o

Petitioner and Respondent agreed that Artur Kustosz Construction received a Form 1099 from Respondent at
the end of the year and that no taxes or Social security was deducted from payments to it. There was no
testimony that Petitioner received employee benefits such as paid time off, vacation or health insurance from
Respondent. Checks were made out to Artur Kustosz Construction and were apparently deposited in its bank
account. This factor implies that there was no employment relationship. '

Respondent’s business certainly encompasses Petitioner’s work, but Artur Kustosz Construction’_s primary
business was said to be “construction”. This factor is not persuasive on the issue of employee/employer, given
the remainder of the e_vid’enCe;.j : : o : T : .

There was no e_videnée on the issue of whether Petitioner could be discharged at will. This should have been
addressed in @ written agreement. Given the lack of evidence, this factor is given no weight on the issue of
employment relationship.

Pét_itione_t was able to work elsewhere than at Respondent. This weighs against the existence of an
employee/employer relationship. -
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' Artur Kustosz Constructlon obtamed workers compensatlon msuranse had a bank account thus unplymg that 1t'
was 2 dlstmct enhty ﬁom Petmoner and actua]ly negatmg an employeez employer relatmnshap wath Respondent _

.Pctltxoner has the burden of proof on the issue of employeefempioyer rclatxonshxp and the Arbltrator ﬁnds that _
: the preponderance of the evtdence does not support a ﬁndmg that suc‘n a relat:cmship exxsted SRS

' "I'hc clazm for compensatmn IS, therefore demed . E

REMAINING ISSUES

o As :he Arbxtrator has found that Petmoner falled to prove that an empioyeefemployer reiatnonsh;p exlsted
- “between him and: Respondent the Arbitrator needs not decide the remammg issues of Acc1dent Notxcc Causal
o 'Conncct:on Wages, Incurred and prospcctzve medxcaI expenses and ’I“TD o : :

.'_-Regardmg the 1ssue of Average Weekiy Wage the Arbltrator calculated the AWW bascd upon Petltloner $ tax |
forms. He was pand no wages. A cialmant 's business income should not be included in‘the calculation of the

Avcrage Weekly Wage. Cindy Mansfield v. The Illinois Workers’ Comgensatlon Comm n, 2013 IL App (Zd)
120909WC (2013) Thus, there was a faﬁure of proof on the issue of wages _



- _:_STATE. OF ILLINOKS y oo [:] Afﬁrm and adopt (no changes) D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
S B o} SS. D Afﬁm w1th changes R D Rate Ad_]ustment Fund (§8(g))
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON ) D Reverse . - [ secona Injury Fund ({;8(e)18)
o ' : _ D PTD/Fatal denied
& Modlfy Up IR Eﬂ None of the- above o

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

) 'WILLIAM TAITT

P_etltlo_ner, 2 s %«* e
s, . | | g
| Reu@

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVEEW

S Trmely Petltlon for Rev1ew havrng been ﬁied by Petltloner herem and notrce glven to all
B partres the Commission, after eon31der1ng the issue of the nature and extent of Petitioner’ S
' drsablhty, and bemg advised of the facts and law, modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as
* stated below and 0therw1se afﬁrms and adopts the Decrslon of the Arbitrator whlch is attached
' hereto and made a part thereof - : o :

T he Cornmlsswn hereby mcorporates by reference the ﬁndlngs of fact contamed in the
Demsmn of the Arbitrator. ‘However, following a careful review of the entire record, the -
- Commission modrﬁes the Decrswn of the Arbitrator to find that Petitioner sastarned a Ioss of
25% MAW based upon its analysrs of the Sectlon 8. 1(b) statutory factors

In revrewmg permanent pamal drsabalrty, the Commrssron must con51der the Sect1on .
8. 1(b) enumerated criteria, including (i) the. reported level of impairment pursuant to (). [AMA
“Guides to’ Evaiuatmn of Permanent Irnpalment”] (ii) the ‘occupation of the m;ured employee,
(iii) the age of the employee at the time of the injury; (1v) the employee s future 1 earning
capacity; and (v) evidence of disability as corroborated by treating medical records. 820 ILCS
305/8.1b(b) (West 2014). However, “[n}o single enumerated factor shall be the sole determmant
of drsablhty ” Id § 305/8. lb(b)(v) : :

Regardmg criterion (i), Dr. Kevin Rutz used the AMA 6th Edruon Guldehnes to prov1de
what he referred to as a “permanent partial impairment rating” or “permanent partral disability
rating” of 5% of the whole body. Dr. Rutz conveyed this rating in his Section 12 report dated
December 17, 2019 and not a separate AMA 1mpa1rment report The Commlssmn assigns some
welght to this factor : :
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Regardmg cntenon (11), Pet1t1oner was employed as a rehef man on the aceldent date _
Dr. Matthew Gornet released him to teturn to his full duty work wrth 10 restrictions as of August
12,2019, However Respondent let Petztloner goon the day he was retumed back to Work
because he had ¢ ‘pointed out” of their. system in part due to his time off work for hisi mJury
Petitioner thereafter began dnvmg a forklift for a company called TG in September 02019, but
he left that jOb because bouncing in and out of the trailers caused brmsmg and was hard on hIS
incision site. At the‘time of the arb1tratlon heanng, Petitioner was employed by Stark Truss -
: _assembhng walls. Petitioner testlﬁed that he was able to handle all the job duties in his current
_heavy demand level of thts posmon The Commlssmn ass:gns moderate welght to thls factor

_ Regardmg criterion (111), Petmoner was 38 years old on the aocrdent date and st111 has -
_ -51gmﬁcant t1me leﬂ: in'the workforce The Comrn1ss10n ass1gns mtermedtate Welght to th1s -

: _factor

- Regardmg ontenon (1v), ?etltzoner $ average weekly wage for ReSpondent was |

o : $1, 071 .63. However, in hlS current position at Stark Truss;, Petltioner works 40 hours per week

ata payrate of §11. 00 per hour, an approxunately 60% deerease in average weekly Wage to .
$440 OO The Comrmsswn 3351gns srgmﬁcant weight to thls faotor -

_ Regardmg cr1ter10n (v) Pet1t1oner treated hlS low back condmon W1th an antenor L '. :
deeompressmn and drse replacement surgery at 1.4- 1.5, injections, phys1oal therapy, prescription
medication, and time off. work. PetItxoner last treated with Dr..Gornet on December 2, 2019, at

o '__;_whwh time he was: placed at maximum med1ca1 1mprovement Dr: Gornet nevertheless mdtcated

~“that Pet1t1oner continued to-have a low level of pain with. increased activity that would hkely be
_ 'per:manent At the tirtic of the. arbrtratlon heanng, Petitioner tes’aﬁed that he was able to return to
most of his dailyactivities and’ no longer got Charley horses in his’ rlght leg or tlnghng
However, he still-experienced low back ‘soreness after a long day of work, when doing heavy .
overhead lifting,: and when going for. walks, climbs, or hikes with his daughter To manage the
soreness, Petitioner takes Ibuprofen three to four times a week ‘and puts Icy Hot on each night
before bed and 1nd1eated that his syrnptorns were related to his activity level in that the more he
does, the worse it hurts. Petzttoner further testified that he had only been fishing a oouple times
since his accident, because he has dlfﬁculty gettlng the boat into the lake and sitting on the boat
for long penods of t1me The Comrmssmn assrgns 1ntermed1ate we1ght to thzs factor '

Upon conmderatwn of these factors parttcularly Petltloner s age and assoelated work—hfe
expectaney and drastic reduction i in earnings‘as a result of “pointing out” which is related to the
amount of sick time Petitioner was required to take off as a result of his acc1dent at work, the
Commission finds that Petitioner has sustained a loss of 25% MAW. The Comm1ss1on modifies
the Decision of the Arbrtrator accordmgly -

iT is THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Decision of the
Arbitrator filed February 18, 2020, is modified as stated herein.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION ’that Respondent pay to Petitioner
the sum of $642.98 per week for a period of 125 weeks, as provided in Section 8(d)2 of the Aot
for the reason that the 1nJunes sustamed caused a loss of 25% MAW.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petrtloner
interest under Sectlon 19(n) of the Ac’e if any

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have eredrt
for all amounts pald 1f any, to or on behaif of Petltroner on account of sa1d accrdental inj ury.

Bond for the removal of thrs cause to the Circuit Court by Respondent is hereby fixed at

“the sum of $75 000 00. The party commencing the proceedmgs for review in the Circuit Court
Shall ﬁle with the Commlssron a Notlee of Intent to Flle for Rev1ew in the Clrcult Court

oaep: e - P
B | ” Barbara N Flores

DLS/met
O- 8/6/20
46

| ‘Marc Parker f K

- 'DIS:SENT' -

I respectﬁilly drssent from the Deczsmn of the majorlty and would have afﬁrmed and
adopted the Arbltrator s permanent partlal drsabrhty award of 17. 5% MAW '

g A}though Petltloner s current average week]y wage is substantlaily less than it was for
Respondent, the record failed to establish that Petitioner’ ] dlsablhty was the actual cause of a
negative impact to ‘his future earnmg capacity. Petitioner was released by Dr. Gornet to return to
full duty work with no restrictions as of August 12,2019 and thereafter found ernployment at
Stark Truss i m a'heavy demand level position. - As Petrtroner testified that he can handle all of his
current work dutles it does not appear that Petitioner’s present dlsa‘olhty level restnets his ab1hty
to find or maintain other work at.the heavy demand level. ‘Moreover, there was no evidence
presented regardmg any of Pehtloner s job searches or the avaliable labor ‘market in order to
properly evaluate Petiuoner s eammg capacnty '

Wlth no permanent work restrictions and no labor market survey to speak to Petitioner’s
earning potential, the record does not clearly establish that Petitioner’s disability diminished his
future earning capacity. The record also failed to explain what Respondent’s point system
entitled. As no details were provided as to how the points system worked, it is not clear how
Petitioner’s injury affected his points compared to his other hospitalization for diverticulitis.

Moreover, the treatment records show that Petitioner continually improved after
undergoing his lumbar surgery. Shortly before Dr. Gornet returned him to full duty work,
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Petltloner asked to ’oe dlscharged from phys;cal therapy onJ uly 12 2019 because he stated that
he was completely comfortable retummg to his work duties. At that time, Petitioner indicated
that he felt therapy was no longer appropnate as he was even more actwe 0uts1de of therapy

At the arbltratxon heanng, Petmoner further charactenzed hls surgery as successful.
Although Petltloner expeﬂences ongoing residual soreness with mcreased activity, he ‘does not
require any prescnptzon medication. Petitioner further testified that he was able to get back to
most of his daily activities, mcludmg walking w1th hls daughter gomg on hlkes Workmg on h1s
vehlcles and retummg to hls normal hfe

oo In conmderatlon of the above I respectfully chssent from the majomty s increase of
Petitioner’s permanent parhal dlsablhty award and wouEd have afﬁrmed and adopted the
Dec1510n of the Arbltrator : :

e WOVW

46 | _ S _ De‘oorahL Slmpson
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. STATEOFILLINOIS . ) =

o : o : _ . -Injured Workers Benefit Fund (54(d))
s ] T Rate Adjustment Fund (§8€g)
COUNTY OF WILLX_AMSQN) o _ SRR S Secood Injury Fund (§8(e)18)

S R T P e IENoneoftheabove.ﬁ'

ILLINOIS VVORKERS’ CO\/IPENSA’TIO\I CO\IVIISSION

ARBITRATIO\I DECISIOV
'NATURE AND EXTENT ONLY i

‘William Taitt =~ L 4 Case#;swcoslo3

Employee(?et_ilioner ' : B y SR S
B I IR N Consolrdated cases n/a
. ArdentMills - ' R ' LT - S

. -Employer/Respondent
:The only disputed issue is the nature and extent of the mjury An Appl:canon for Adjusiment of Clazm was ﬂied
in this matter, and a Notice of Hearmg was mailed to‘each ‘party. ‘The:matter was heard by the: Honorable -

' Wilham R. Galiagher Arbrtrator of the Commrsswn n the cxty of Hemn on January 14 2020 By stlpulatlon
the partres agree S : S o SR _ . LR

'.'On the date of eCCident Ianuary 25 2618 Respondent was operatlrrg under and su‘ojectl to the prov.}.srons of the. ' ;'
B f-On th1s date thc reiationshlp .of em.ployee ond ernployer dld e)r1t,t betwcen Pet1t1.on.er. and Respon.dcnt

'.On thrs datc Petmoner sustarned an aeetdent that arose out of and in the course of employment |

Tnnely notlce of thls acmdent was .gwen to Respondent |

Pet1t1oner s current condmon of 111 belng is causaliy related to the acclident

In the year precedmg the mjury, Petltloner eamed SSS 724 76; the average weekly wagc was $1 071. 63

At thc tlme of In}ury, Petatroner was 38 years of age mamed wrth 4 dependent chlid(ren) |

Nccessary medlcal services and temporary compensatlon beneﬁts have been or w1il be pr0v1ded by Respondent.

Rcspondent shall be given a credrt of $26 229.42 for TTD, $0. {)O for TPD $0 00 for maintenance, and
$6,180. 00 for other beneﬁts (PPD advance) fora total credit of $32,409. 42 .

JCArbDecN&E 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chicago. IL 60601 312:814-6611  Toll-free 866/332-3033  Web site: www.hwec, t.’gm
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After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the Arbitrator hereby makes findings regarding the nature and
extent of the injury, and attaches the findings to this document.

ORDER

-Responden't shall pay Petitioner permanent partial disability benefits of $642.98 ber week for 87.5 because the
injuries sustained caused 17 1/2% loss of use of the person as a whole, as provided in Section 8(d)2 of the Act.

Respondent shall pay Petitioner compensation that has accrued from December 2, 2019, through January 14,
2020, and shall pay the remainder of the award, if any, in weekly payments.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS Unless a party files a Pefition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this

decision, and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the
decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice
of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however,
if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decreasc in this award, interest shall not accrue.

//[ %%M February 8, 2020

William R. Gallagher, Arbitrat#

Date

ICArbDecN&E p. 2

FEB 18 2020



B . Pindines o'fFaCt'

_ Petl‘noner ﬁled an Apphcatlon for Ad}ustment of Clalrn whrch aiIcgcd hc sustamed an acci dcntal_

njury ansrng out of and in the course of his employment by Respondent on Tanuary 25, 2018, -

‘According to . the: Apphcatron ‘Petitioner was "Pulhng hose, stepped backwards into hole in
floor" and sustained an injury to his "Low back, right leg ;bodyasa whole" (Arbitrator's Exhibit -

2). ‘At trial, the only dlsputed issue ‘was the nature: and extent of dlsablllty Petztloner and L
Respondent also strpuiated Respondent had - pard Petitioner advance payments - of permanent_ -

. -partial-disability in the: amount of $6 180 00 and Respondent was entltied to.a credrt for same )
.(ArbrtratorsExhlblt 1) EERNEEE . S e

- _'Thls case was prevxously trred ina 19(b) procccdrng on Novcmbcr 27 2018 At that tnnc the -
- -only disputed issue was Pétitioner's entitlemient.to continued temporary total dlsablhty beneﬁts

The. Arbitrator ruled in favor of Petitioner and his Decision was filed with the' Commissionon -

- December 22,2018, Respondent filed a:review of the Arbztrators Decisiofi to the Commlssron '
On- September 30; 2019, ‘the Commission cntcred its Decision and’ Opmron on Review  'which

affirmed the Arbrtrators Decmon awardmg tempor’try total dlsablllty beneﬁts to Petltloner e

| ¥ (Petmoner s Exhrbrt 1 1)

As noted in the Comnmssron ) Deersron Petltroner S prrmary treatmg physrc1an Was Dr Matthew
~Gornet, an orthopedrc surgeon, who recommended Petitioner undergo disc replacernent surgery

O at L4-LS: Respondent had Petltlonez examined by: Dr. Kcvm Rutz, an orthopedlc surgeon, who .

s opmed the back surgery recommended by Dr Gornet Was w1thm the appropnate standard of care -

. "-(Petltloners Exhlblt 11)

' At the trme Petrtroner sustamcd thc accrdent on }anuary 25; 2018 he Worked for Respondent as a
.relief man. Petrtroner sustamed the acadent as he was in ‘the: process of. atternptmg to unclog ;i
*flour:pipe with ‘an air- hose As Petitioner was unrolhng the hose; it ‘got- caught and - ‘“while
'.Petr’noner was pulhng on it and walkmg backward hrs left ieg went through a. hole n the ﬂoor

As was noted in the Commzssron 8 Dec1sron Petrtroner recelved conservat:ve treatment mcludlng
sterord 1njectlons He also underwent numerous chaﬂnostrc tests (Petltroner $ Exhrblt 1 1)

| :Ultrmately, Dr Gornet performed back surge1y on December 12, 20}8 The procedure consrsted
' of an anterlor decompresszon and disc replacement at L4- L5 (Petltroner ) Exhrbrt 8) '

Foliowmo surgery, Petitloner contmued to be treated by Dr Gomet When Dr Gornet saw
Petltloner on January 3, and January 24, 2019, he noted Petitioner was doing well. When Dr.
Gornet saw Petltroner on March 25, 2019 he ordered physu:al therapy (Petrtloner s Exhrbrt 5)

Petltzoner received physmaf therapy from Aprll 1, 2019 through July 12 2019 Durmg that time,
Petltzoners syrnptorns gradualiy rmprovcd (Petltroner ] Exhrblt 3) : :

When Dr. Gomet saw Petrtroner on August 5, 2019 Dr. Gomet noted Petitioner had continued to
do well. He released Petrtroner to return’to work without restnctrons effectlve August 12, 2019
(Petltroner s Exhlbrt 5). : SR - : .

.__WlllramTaittv ArdentMrHs A8 WC0s103
Page] | o R ibbes



Dr. Gornet subsequently saw Petitioner on December 2, 2019. Dr. Gornet noted Petitioner was
released to return to work full duty effective August 12, 2019, but was informed his employment
had been terminated. Dr. Gornet opined Petitioner was at MMI, but he also noted Petitioner still

had a-low level of pain with increased activities and that it would probably be permanent
(Petltloners Exhibit 5)

At the direction of Respondent, Petitioner was again examined by Dr. Rutz on December 17,
2019, In connection with his examination of Petitioner, Dr. Rutz reviewed medical records which
included Dr. Gornet's most recent medical records of December 2, 2019, which were provided to
him by Respondent. On examination, Dr. Rutz noted Petitioner had some mild residual back

pain, but no neurological deficits. He opined Petitioner could work without restrictions and was
at MMI (Respondent's Exhibit 3).

Dr. Rutz also opined Petitioner had a permanent partial impairment rating of five percent (5%)

bascd upon the AMA guides. Dr. Rutz also described this as a permanent partial disability rating
{Respondent’s Exhibit 3).

At trial, Petitioner acknowledged Dr. Gornet had released him to return to work without
restrictions. However, Respondent terminated Petitioner's employment purportedly because of
excessive absentecism. Petitioner stated he was able to find employment driving a forklift.

Petitioner testified he subsequently had to leave that job because the bouncing up and down
while driving the forklift became too painful.

Petitioner was later able to find a job at Stark Truss where he 1s currently employed. Petitioner's
job duties consist of building watlls, some of which are very heavy. Petitioner testified the job at
Stark Truss is physically demanding, but he has been able to perform all of his job duties.
Petitioner is currently making $11.00 an hour and works 40 hours a week, $440.00 a week.
While employed by Respondent, Petitioner's average weekly wage was $1,071.63.

At trial, Petitioner stated he still has symptoms in his low back, primarily on the right side.
Petitioner's symptoms become more intense with activity. Petitioner does avoid taking any
narcotic medication, but he does take over-the-counter medication on an as needed basis.

Conclusion of Law

The Arbitrator concludes Petitioner has sustained permanent partial disability to the extent of 17
1/2% loss of use of the person as a whole.

In support of thlS concluszon the Arbitrator notes the following:

Dr. Rutz opmed Petit!oner had a permanent partial 1mpa1rment rating of five percent (5%) based
on the AMA guides. However, he also incorrectly characterized it as a permanent partial
disability rating. Obviously, the permanent partial impairment rating does not take into
consideration the physical demands of Petitioner's job and the fact Petitioner has increased
symptoms with activity. The Arbitrator gives this factor minimal weight.

William Taitt v. Ardent Mills 18 WC 05103
Page 2



Petltxoner was employed as a relief man at the time of the acc1dent but hlS employment was_
subsequently terminated by Respondent. Petitioner currcntiy works bmidmg walls which he
described as physically demanding. Although Petitioner continues to have low back symptorns,

’ he has been abie to work w1thout restr 1ct10ns The Arbitrator gwes th1s factor moderate wel ght

_ Petitloner was 38 yeals of age at the tnne he sustamed the accxdent He Wili have to llve W1th the
effects of the injury for the remamder ot his workmg and natural life. The Arbltzator glves thls
factor 51gn1ﬁcant Welght : o S . S

-Petltloner earned $1, 071 63 per week at the nme he sustamed the accxdent and presently eamns
substantially less $440.00 per week. As noted herein, Petitioner was released fo return to work
~without - restncnons but - Respondent termlnated his - employment Because of ‘these
-circumstances, - 1t is difﬁcuit to determine if Petmoners current eammgs are mchcatwe of a
_ decreased earmng capacﬁy The Arbltrator gwes this factor mm;mai welght -

'Petlticner sustamed an mjury 10 lns 1ow back wh;ch requxred back surgery cons}stlng of a
decompresswn and disc replacement procedure at L4-L5, While Petitioner was released to return
to work without restrictions, Dr. Gomnet noted Petitioner still had a low 1eve! of pain with
-'mcreased activn:y ‘which would probably be permanent. Petitioner's testimony regardmo his
'complalnts was consxstent ‘with and corro‘oorated by the precedmo The Arbltrator gwes thlS
- factor s;omﬁcant welght : :

/MC@W

William R. Gallagher Arbztrator /

Wllham Taitt v, Ardent Mlﬁs ' . i8 WwC 05103
Page 3 _ - . :
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Pagel
_STATE OF ILLI_NOIS ) o @Afﬁrm and adopt (no changes) Dln}ured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (g4(d})
B L L J)8sS. DAfﬁrm with ehanges S N DRateAdjustmentFund (§8(g))
: COUNTY OF COOK o ) . DReverse _' AR : DSeeond InjulyFund (§8(e)18)
[ . B - | L] prosratal denied

' DModi'fy :'. : .None of the above
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION S
Albert Sé_fh?séné |
- '_'Petitioner, o
v NO: 19 WE 2250
.Parge Bus Enterpnses o

Respondent

: DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

_ Trmer Petltzon for Rev1ew under §§l9(b)/ 8(a) havmg been filed by the Respondent
herein and notice given to all partles the Commission, after c0n31der1ng the issues of accident,
temporary d1sab111ty, medical expenses and ev1dent1ary and procedural rulings and berng advised

‘of the facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts the Decision of the: Arbitrator, which is attached hereto
“and made a’part hereof “The Commission 'further remands thrs case to the Arbltrator for further
proceedmgs for a determination of a further amount of temporary total compensatlon orof -
'compensatlon for permanent drsabxhty, if any, pursuant to Thomas V. Industrral Connmssron 78

1m.2d 327 399 N.E. 2d 1322, 35 1L Dec 794 (1980)

IT IS TI—IEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Demsron of the

Arbitrator ﬁled January 14, 2020 is hereby afﬁrmed and adopted

IT _IS FURTHER_ ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that this case be remanded to the
Arbitrator for further proceedings consistent with this Decision, but only after the latter of
expiration of the time for filing a written request for Summons to the Circuit Court has expired
without the filing of such a written request, or after the time of completion of any ]UdlClal

proceedmgs if such a written request has been ﬁled




| "19W02250
Page2

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION tha’t Respondent pay to Petltloner' o
-1nterest under §19(n) of the Act 1f any S _ _

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent Shaﬂ have credlt :. '

for aH amounts pald 1f any, to or. on behalf of Petltsoner on account of sa1d acc1denta1 1njury

Bond for the removal of ﬂ’llS cause to the Clrcuit Court by Respondent is hereby ﬁxed at
' the sum of $14,800. 00. “The party commencmg the proceedmgs for review in the Cn’cult Court

SRR shali ﬁle w1th the Comm1331on a Notice of Intent to F11e for Rev1ew m Clrcult Court

o '.DLS/rrn

046







o Employee/Petitioner: 1"

8 491

i S_TA?E.Q“__I?PINQIS_. BT AR R D}'gji;r'ed ﬁ\égjrkfe}é*_Bgu_éﬁi'i%;{ﬁd(§4(dj) '
- COUNTYOFCOOK RS []_sécpnd_fnjqu_fruﬁd_(§8_(e)18) o

: . S DI R HRRSRE N'Qné'_of_theab_'c:}_ve ' :

~ ARBITRATION DECISION
S 8@

 ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

 ALBERTASAMPSON | Casef1gwCozs0
AIGE BUS ENTERPRISES .~~~

. Empf@ﬁf /_R.?.SE.O_H_ deﬂ_t__'

~ Consolidated cases:

- An'Applicaiion Jor Adjustment of Claim was filed in this matter, and a Notice of Hearing was ~mailed to cach
“party. The matter was heard by the Honorable Paul Cellini, Arbitrator of the Commission, in the city of =~
~-Chicago, on.August 13, 2019, After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the' Arbitrator hercby makes

findings on the disputed issues checked below and attaches those findings to this document. -~~~ .. ..

* A [ ] WasRespondent operating under and subject to the Tlinois Workers' Compensation or Occupatiorial
K Was there an employec-employer rlationshipy S
D D;danaccxdentoccur that arose but_'bf' and iﬁ"%h'éfcoufs'e of _Petition:e'r"s 'empioyrheﬁ_t by .Respoﬁdént?

O Whatwas the date of tho accidensy o Reond

] Wéé_timéiy_ nc_'a.tic_e"of _théféc:'ci'den_t gi.ven"tb'ReSpondent? )

X I_:s'Pét'it__i'Qi'_ler'_s current condition of ill-being causally related to the injury?
D What werePetltloner‘seammgs? : : | o o o
[ What was Petitioner's age at the time of the accident?
[ What was Petitioner's marital status at the time of the accident?
Wercthemedzcal serv1cesthat :Wér_.e' : ide to _ :
¢ paid all _éippropr_iat_e charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services?
X _Is"Pe_titi_d'ner_ entitled to any prospective medical care? R
What teﬁapb_réi‘y benefits are in dispute? = -

Qb [JMaintenance -~ [ TTD

M. [] Should penalties or fees be imposed upon Respondent?

N. []1s Respondent due any credit? '

TrEmoTmmyYaw

provided to Petitioner reasonable and necessary? Has Respondent

c

O. LJoher ____ -
ICArbDeci9by) 2710 100 W, Randolph Sireet #8-200 C hicage, IL 60601 312/814-6611 Toll-free 866/352-3033 Web sire- www.iwee il goy
Downstate qffices: Collinsville 618/346-3450 Peoria 309/671-3019  Rockford 815/987.7293 Springfield 217/785-7084




Sampson v. Paige Bus Ent., 19 WC 02250

4 %f‘
FINDINGS

On the date of accident, January 23, 2019, Respondent was operating under and subject to the provisions of
the Act.

On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between Petitioner and Respondent.
On this date, Petitioner did sustain an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment.
Timely notice of this accident was given to Respondent.’ o

Petitioner's current condition of ill-being is causally related to the accident.

|

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner carned $10,131.85; the average weekly wage was $203.46.

On the date of accident, Petitioner was 69 years of age, single with 0 dependent children.

Respondent has ot paid all reasonable and necessary charges for all reasonable and necessary medical
services. L

Respondent shall be given a credit of $N/A for TTD, SN/A for TPD, $N/A for maintenance, and SN/A for other
benefits, for a total credit of $N/A. '

Respondent is entitled to a credit of $0 under Section 8()) of the Act.

ORDER

The Arbitrator finds that the Petitioner sustained accidental injury arising out of and in the course of her

employment on January 23, 2019. The Arbitrator further finds that the Petitioner sustained a closed head

injury, COCCyX contusion and cervical and lumbar strains that are causally related to the accident, but that she
had no treatment for the head condition after her emergency room visit, and that she reached maximum
medical improvement relative to her cervical and lumbar spine as of March 18, 2019.

Respbndent shall pay Petitioner temporéry total disability benefits of $203.46 per week for 7-5/7 weeks,
commencing January 24, 2019 through March 18, 2019, as provided in Section 8(b) of the Act..

Respondent shall pay reasonable and necessary medical services of $13,167.73, as provided in Sections 8(a) and
8.2 of the Act.

Prospective medical treatment is denied.

In no instance shall this award be a bar to subsequent hearing and determination of an additional amount of
medical benefits or compensation for a temporary or permanent disability, if any. -

RULES REGARDING APPEALS: Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this
decision and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the
decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE: [f the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate sct forth on the Notice
of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below fo the day before the date of payment;

however, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not
accruc. '
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© ., ‘Signature of Arbitrator R AT - Date v

| January10,2020

. “Petitioner has worked for Respondent ‘as’ a bus monitor since March 2013. She testified that she was in'an

employee-only parking lot at 6:30 a.m. on 1/23/19 when she slipped and fell on ice. Her testimony was that the

o lot:was not open to the general public and that it was dark at the time. To gel to her buS_'shéfh'ad'.-_t'_'{):.w'a'i'kjthf'du'gh

“the lot; testifying she did this four_;"tim'es'p"ei_f.day_.::‘})é:t"ifio'nc;j_'té_s_'t_iﬁc_d'_.'_S'h:éfhad_ s_:_h_eé‘g,.iback’_:_and_'pOs’_térit)f'he'_é_i_d pain

 after she fell, and that she was brought to the hospital via ambulance,

At the Ingalls Memorial Hospital ER on 1/23/19, the Petitioner reported an oceipital headache and coceyx pain

* following a slip and fall on ice that morning. She denicd other complaints or loss of consciousness. There were -

1o focal neurologic deficits on exam, no cervical tenderncss, normal movement of the. exiremiden. .
unremarkable CT scan of the head and normal x-rays of the lumbar spine and coceyx. The lumbar x-ray report
~-does note anterolisthesis of L5 on S1, no acute fracture and moderate multileve] degenerative disc disease with
- moderate/severe facet arthropathy. Petitioner was discharged, prescribed ibuprofen and advised to return to
- work on 1/25/19 and to follow up with her own physician. (Px1), R e
~ Petitioner testified ‘that she followed up- with Dr. Najera on 1/25/19. The records: submitted into” evidence

' indicate sh went to the South Holland Medical Center (also known as AMCI) on 1/25/19 and saw chiropractor

' 'Dr.-_-3Hc_j(_)"tbn.j-’i"h'¢_'i‘_cpo'rt_S'taté:_é’-thai_t'-P_eti_t__i_(_):ncr was working as'a bus monitor on 1/23/19 ‘and was walking to a bus -
when she slipped on a patch of ice in the parking lot, causing her to fall backwards and strike her head and back
on the ground. She reported ongoing 8 out of 10 (8/10) pain throughout the spine and that she had been unable
to work: Petitioner was diagnosed with’ cervical, thoracic and lumbar strains and a’ cocCyx contusion that were -

noted to-be causally related to the fall, Petitioner ‘was taken off work, physical therapy and a home exercise -
program were recommended, and she was advised to follow up with Dr. Foreman. (Px2). - GRS

Petitioner saw Dr. Foreman on 1 /29/19 at South Holland Medical Center. He noted her primary complaints were
neck and back pain with pain into both posterior legs at times. Following examination and review: of the prior
lumbosacral x-rays, Dr, Foreman noted ' the same’ diagnoses that were thade on 1/25/19, adding  lumbar
radiculitis .and spondylolisthesis, and noted possible exacerbation of previously ‘asymptomatic degencrative

prine ‘and Omeprazole.

disease.. Prescribed ‘were "physical therapy, home exercise, Naprosyn, _Cyclobenza
Petitioner was also held off work pending 2/26/19 reevaluation. (Px2). -

2/14/19, 2/16/19, 2/19/19 and 2/21/19 at South Holland. Each of these reports are either identical or virtually
identical to each other, and all note that the Petitioner reported feeling the same despite treatment. On 2/22/ 19,

chiropractor Dr. Hooton reported that Petitioner’s symptoms had improved somewhat, noting 3 ‘of 6 therapy
goals had been achieved or partially achieved while the other three were not yet achieved, (Px2). - o

Chiropractic evaluations were performed along with physical therapy on 2/1/19, 2/4/19, 2/6/19,2/8/19, 2/11/19,

On 2/25/ 1'9, at ihé réqu'e;s.t__ __6f .thfe Re'_sp'ondé.ht'. pur:sﬁ'an_t_ té_ Séctior_i 12, Peti_tioner Was c’Xér'_niiie'd' by orthoi)edic |
surgeon by Dr. Julie Wehner. She reported a consistent history of the 1723719 accident and that she was referred
to South Holland Medical Center by her attorney. Petitioner told Dr. Wehner she was about 50% improved with -

3



Sampson v. Paige Bus Ent., 19 WC 02250 % @ A

treatment to date, with 7/10 low back pain, right greater than left, and no pain or n
Wehner indicated Petitioner did not report any neck pain that day. Petitioner stated she had no prior back
problems. Following_examination and review of Petitioner’s medical _records, Dr. Wehner diagnosed Petitioner
with soft tissue injuries/contusions including a lumbar strain and head contusion, noting it was possible she also
suffered a cervical strain but that Petitioner’s said her headaches tesolved and she was not complaining of neck
pain, only low back pain. Her review of radiologic studies indicated normal age-related degenerative findings
and no acute findings. Dr. Wehner opined that the injuries were causally related to the 1/23/ 19 work accident
and that Petitioner’s treatment to date had been reasonable. Noting the Petitioner reported she had been
discharged from care, Dr. Wehner also opined that the Petitioner had reached maximum medical improvement

and was able to return to work full duty. Her clinical exam was normal, and she advised_Petitioner to continue
home exercise. (RX7). . - : : . L

Also, on 2/25/ 19, the Petitioner was reevaluated by Dr. Foreman. His assessment reflected that Petitioner
reported decreased pain, some reduction in medication use with treatment and_functional improvement.
However, she continued to report symptoms. Dr. Foreman believed Petitioner would fikely benefit from a return
to work program, and he prescribed a TENS unit, lumbar brace and changed medications to Meloxicam and
Tramadol ER. Home exercise was t0 continue, and a functional capacity evaluation (FCE) was advised to assess
job capacity and to guide a return to work program. A tumbar MRI was also recommended. He continued the
Petitioner off work pending a 3/18/19 visit with Dr. Najera, stating the visit would be for “PMR/Inteiventional
Pain consultation and further treatment and work recommendations. Disabled until cleared by Dr. Najera.”
®x2). .. : Lo

Petitioner underwent an FCE at South Holland on 3/4/19. The results are unclear to the Arbitrator, and the
therapist stated: “Job lifting requirements were not heavy enough to surpass the 10% tile required to generate a
valid result” and that in some fashion the test was invalid. Dr. Najera, however, in reviewing the testing on

- 3/18/19 stated that the FCE "meets validity criteria.” Petitioner’s job was listed at the “medium”™ work level,
though this appears to bave been significantly based on her report of having to Lift up to 30 pounds occasionally,
as the rest of the job involved walking or sitting. It appears the test may be indicating the Petitioner could work
at that level. (Px2). . . ' - - o

Tﬁe 3/ 1'1./1.9 lumbar MRI reﬂected multilevel épondylosis with_faéef arthrbsis and ligam_éﬁtum flavum
hypertrophy. There were circumferential disc bulges with neuroforaminal and central canal stenosis at L.3/4
(moderate), L4/5 (moderate to severe), L.2/3 and L5/S1 (mild to moderate) and at L1/2 (mild). {(Px3).

Petitioner presented for therapeutic massage on 3/5/19, 3/8/19 and 3/13/19. (Px2). _

On 3/18/19, Petitioner presented to Dr. Najera at South Holland. While he states that the Petitioner reported
some improvement with each of the conservative treatments she was receiving, she also was continuing to
-~ report 8/10 pain. Dr. Najera reviewed the lumbar MR, noting it revealed multilevel disc bulges and facet
arthropathy causing multilevel neuroforaminal and central stenosis. Dr. Najera ‘recommended EMG,
interventional pain procedures and consideration of surgical consultation if interventional procedures failed.
Petitioner indicated she wanted to consider her options, including a second opinion, SO she was referred to a
spine specialist of her choice. His report states she was to remain “disabled until cleared by spine specialist or
follow-up with me if she wishes to pursue interventional management, Discharged from care.” She was advised
to continue home exercise and to wean from oral narcotics. (Px2). ' o

Dr. Naj_ér_a issued an addén_dt:m on .3_/ 18/19 after reviewing the 2/25/19 report of Dr. Wehner. He states: “1 do
pot agree with the following opinions: 1. Dr. Wehner did not have the MRI report available, which shows

multilevel extensive degeneration for the lumbar spine causing both :mul'tilevel_ stenosis and multilevel lumbar

4
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st She is o candidat for infrventonal prosedurcs nd possibly snger. 2. Bocause of the IR fndings |
do not feel she is at MMI. A recent FCE ‘was also done by Dr. Hooton on 3/4/19; which was ordered by Dr.,
Foreman. Please sce the FCE report for full details. She did not meet all her goals™ (Px2). ~ -~ .

© On'4/15/19, Dr. Wehner issucd an addendum roport following her review of the 3/11/1 9 lumbar MR, noting

 again that there were normal age-related findings and stating that this did not change her previouis opinions of

1 2/25/19. She. stated: “These ‘radiographic find

ings can ‘cause - neurologic  claudication, - which  is pain-with -

- ‘ambulation. This was not consistent with Ms; Sampson’s description of her pain;” (Rx8). S

- Petitioner tastified she has continuing right lower back pain and she has not retumed to work. She did nof have

' Petitioner. s also. questioned on cross-examination. She initially testificd she did not recall receiving a

~ company handbook but acknowledged she must have when she was shown a 3/26/13 receipt for same, (Rx2).
She agreed she also signed for an update/addendum o the handbook (Rx3), and that it reflected rales for certain’

-~ shoes for winter driving but festified she does not drive the bus. On the accident date she was wearing “winter
 Sketchers”, testifying that she was advised that she could not wear a shoe with 4 toe or heel out and that
~“everyone wore gym shoes.” Petitioner acknowledged she signed for the addendum in Rx4 on 8/18/17. Her

- understanding was that the winter dress code rules were no gym or running shoes. Asked if her Sketchers were a

- brand of gym shoes, she testified she didn't know. Petitioner acknowledged her attorney referred her to Dr.
- Najera, The only orthopedic physician she has seen thus far was Dr. Wehner. She had not seen Dr. Najera since

‘M, Felicia Bailey-Diggs testifi  on behalf of the Respondent. The operations manager oversecing day to day

~ operations at the bus yard in R

- children to and from school. She previously worked for Respondent as safety and compliance officer, which
- involved overseeing the safety of students and drivers, keeping driver records, dealing with bus accidents and

- forwarding workers’ compensation claims 1o the corporate facility. She. testified she remains involved with
safety issues as the operations manager. Ms. Bailey-Diggs testified she is familiar with the employee handbook,
identifying Rx1 as a copy. She vetificd Rx2 was the acknowledgement of receipt of the handbook signed by
“Petitioner. She noted that there have been. addendums-and ‘supplements to ‘the handbook (Rx3-and Rx4) and
verified the Petitionet had signed in that she received them:. She testified the addendum in Rx3 states that work -

style shoes were required to be worn, not gym or running shoes, and that the second addendum (Rx4) in August

iverdale, Tllinois, she. testified the company is responsible for transporting

© 2017 reflected: the winter shoe wear requirement. ‘Ms. Bailey-Diggs testified that. the purpose  of ‘the. mle o

prohibiting gym or running shoes in the winter is based on both driver and student safety. Bus monitors are
required to help kids on and off the bus, so the rule is important for them to do‘their jobs propetly. Ms. Bailey-
Diggs testified that there are more falls in the winter without proper shoe wear, i.¢ avoiding £ym or running

shoes.
On 1/23/19, Ms. Bailey-Diggs was contacted that someone had fallen so she went out to the parking lot. The
Petitioner was lying on‘the ground when she arrived, and she noted the Petitioner was wearing gym'shoes with
flat soles, which she believed were Sketchers; that were not the proper footwear. She ‘testified that, per. the
addendum, the Petitioner was supposed to be wearing work boots.: She did not discuss this issue with the
Petitioner at the time as the Petitioner had been injured and on the ground. Petitioner acknowledged that Ms.
Bailey-Diggs came out to the lot in a van when she fell. - B T I PO
On cross exam, Ms. Bailey-Diggs agreed that the Rx4 addendum indicated employees were to wear “work shoe
style.” She acknowledged that the Petitioner has been a good employee working as a paraprofessional, i.¢, bus
monitor. She agreed the Petitioner would have to walk through the parking lot to get to the buses. Petitioner had
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been issued no dress code violations prior to the accident, While she agreed the Petitioner had not faced any
post-accident discipline because of her shoe wear, on redirect Ms. Bailey-Diggs testified that the Petitioner had
not been back to work since the incident and that when she returned she would receive a verbal warning, which
is the proper discipline for a first offense. ' o ' ' '

Respondent’s cutrent safety compliance officer, Tamika Cosper, testified that she 1s responsible for making sure
all employees are working safely. She also deals with workers’ compensation, accidents, medical cards and
keeping employee files up to date. Before that she was a driver/trainer, including doing pre-trip training for new
hires and road safety. She had been working in this position on the accident date. Safety meetings/training
would be performed bi-monthly, initially prior to the children returning to school, and at that time they would
review the company rules. Ms. Cosper testified she is familiar with the rules in the employee handbook and
addendums, including winter shoe wear. Rx4 included the rule in effect at the time of the accident; the use of

work shoes/boots and no gym or running shoes. She indicated the reason for the rule was to avoid employees
injuring themselves. . : : : - - . .

Testifying it is documented in Rx6, a safety mecting took place at Respondent’s facility on 12/19/18. Petitioner
was present for the meeting based on her signature on the sign in sheet. At that ime, all safety/ winter safety
issues were discussed, as documented in her notes (Rx5), including winter shoe wear; radio calls, railroad
crossing rules, etc. It was emphasized that the shoes worn had to be suitable for winter, 1.e. boots..

At the safety meeting on 12/19/18 Petitioner testified she did not recall aﬁy di_Scussion.'regarding the importance
of not wearing gym shoes and a need to wear boots in winter, and that based on her understanding her Sketchers
were proper shoes. She testified she had never been reprimanded by Respondent for wearing the wrong shoes.

Cross-examined, Ms. Cosper agreed that the term used in Rx4, “work shoe style”, doesn’t necessarily require
the footwear to be boots. She testified that since Petitioner began her employment with Respondent in 2013, she
had not been reprimanded for any employee code violations and acknowledged that part of her own daily
routine was to walk through the lot to check on things. - Co S AR

Testifyihg in re"outfa'l, Pe.ti_tioner' diép’u_te_ci béi_ng told to wear boots at Work a'nd_ 'te.s_tiﬁed_that er_hiﬂoyéés were
told they could wear a full shoe. She considered the Sketchers she was wearing to bé consistent with an

acceptable work shoe. She wears a summer Sketcher and a winter one with a thicker heel. She testified she has
worn these shoes to work daily-and had never been reprimanded for it. She testified that all she was told by her
«pJ”, Respondent’s Keith Paige, and by Ms. Bailey-Diggs when she initially came to work for Respondent was
fo avoid shoes with an open toe or an extended heel. Ms. Bailey-Diggs denied this when she then testified in
rebuttal, indicating she wasn’t aware of any other Respondent representative saying this to employees. She
testified she hadn’t paid attention to whether Petitioner had worn sneakers to work prior to the accident date,
and that if she had she would have said something to the Petitioner. The employee handbook is produced by the
corporate department and as such Ms. Bailey-Diggs herself has no ability to change the shoe wear rules.

With regard to the employee handbook (Rx1), dated 2012, the section on shoes indicates: a) “All shoes must
have enclosed heels and toes and possess a non-sip type of sole and heel, which are typically a type of shoe that
will effectively resist slipping on wet or slippery surfaces”, and b) “Shoes worn for winter driving must be
appropriate- for winter or cold weather work.” Additionally, the appearance/dress code rules state that there
should be no open toe sandals, sling back shoes, crocs or slippers, and that no shoes with soles or heels more
than one inch in height or high heeled boots are acceptable. A first offense would involve a documented verbal

_w_arning, possibly being sent home, while offenses then escalate to a written warning and sent home, a three-day
suspension and finally termination. (Rx1).. : ' ' o
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.'.R>t2 is the Petmoner s swned acknowledeement of reeezpt of the handbook on 3/26/ 13 Rx3 is-an Appearance: e

" and Dréss Code addendum, also signed off on by Petitioner on 3/26/13, and is the same as the han'dbook except

“for the part about shoes in winter; This document states:*Shoes worn’ fo: winter driving must be a “work shoe”
_ style nota gym shoe or. running’ shoe.” An additional addendum, signed. by Petmoner as. recewed on 8/ 18/ 17 1s :
o essentlally 1dennca1 to the addendum in Rx3 w1th regard to shoe wear (Rx4) ' S :

. Thc safety meetlng notes testlﬁed to by Ms Cosper (RXS), as o shoe wear; state Weathel Wear shoes that S R
B good for ram mud snow (RXS) Petmoner sngned m for the 12/ 19/ i8. safety meetmg (Rx6) S .

i __Petltloner s Exhab;t 4 (Px4) eontams the medtcal expeoscs Petltmner 1s elalmmg to be related to the aeudent o
o _and for whlch she argues the Respondent shonld be l1ab1e : SEaE L :

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

- WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE (C), DID AN ACCIDENT OCCUR THAT AROSE OUT OF AND INTHE
' COURSE OF THE PETITIONER’S EMPLOYMENT BY THE RESPONDENT THE_ ARBITRATOR L
- FINDSASFOLLOWS: e T T

.Respondent mamtalns no compensab]o aemdcnt oeeurred because Petmonor was wear mg gym Shoes at the ‘ame
* of the accident in violation of company policy. Petitioner dlsputes this allegat:on claiming she wore Sketcher
-~ style winter work shoes that were not in violation of company policy. The Arbitrator finds’ that the Petltloner '
i sustamed acmdental 1njury ar:smg out. of and in the courso of her employment on 1/23;’ 1 9 : :

_The Arbltrator notes that the Petmoner’ was. cicarly \111 the course of her employment when she sl1pped and fell’- :
" in'the parkmg Iot on 1/23/ 19. She was. walklng out to her bus across an 1cy lot that she was, reqmred to traverse
- to access the bus She was, m the performanee of her work dut1es o, : FEeT '

'W1th regard to the ar:smg out of aspect of the issue of acmdcnt the demswe isstic is whether the employee
‘was, at the time of the accident, violating a ‘rule ‘while still in the scope of . his employment or whether the
: aIleged rule v1olat1on took hlm out51de 1ts sphere Heyman Dzsrrrbutzon Co. v [ndustrzal Comm A, 32 N E 2d
:394(1941) ' 5 o _ S : L .

'In J S Masonry Inc v. Industrzal Comm M, 861 N. E 2d 202 (2006) the appellate court con31dered the isste of
‘whether an injury arose out of the employment relationsmp without regard to the facts in d;spute as to whether
the Petitioner had violated a company: rule regarding safety. In upholdlng benefits, the court found that * though '
‘e may have been- performmg his duties ina negligent ‘manner, the claimant ‘was * domg exactly the thzng he
was employed to'do,” Id. In Republic Iron & Steel Co. v. ]na’usrrzal Comm'n, 302 111.401, 134 N.E. 754 (1922),
the supreme court. set forth the proposition which governs cases in which an ernployee violates “a rule and is
injured. The rule is, that where the violation of a rule or order of the ‘employer takes the employee enttrely out
of the sphere of his employment and he is’ 1n3ured while violating such rule or order it cannot be then said that
the accident arose out of the employment; and in such a case no compensation can'be recovered: I, however,

in violating such a rule or order the employee does not put himself out of the sphere of his employment, so that
it may be said he is not acting in the course of it, he is only gutlty of neghgence in violating such rule or order
and recovery is not thereby barred. * * * [I]t does not matter in the shghtest degree how many orders the
employee dlsobeys or how bad his conduct may have been if he was still acting in the sphere of his employment
and in the course of it the ae01dent arose out of i 1t Republzc 302 IEi at 406 134 N E. 754 '

The Arbltrator 1n1naliy notes that the safety rules of Respondent in thlS case were vague in terms of exactly
what type of shoes were requzred They do spec1fy that gym shoes were not to be worn. In this case, Ms Bailey-

-7
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Diggs testified that the Petitioner was wearing gym shoes when she found her on the ground. Petitioner testified
that the Sketchers shoes she was wearing in winter had a thicker sole than what she wore in summer. As the
shoes themselves or a photo of them were not submitted into evidence, it is unclear to the Arbitrator whether the
shoes were or were not what a reasonable person would consider to be gym shoes. However, even if they. were,
the Arbitrator sees nothing egregious about the Petitioner wearing them such that it would result in her taking
‘herself out of her employment. The Arbitrator also notes with significant interest that a significant
preponderance of the evidence indicates the Petitioner had never previously been reprimanded for violating
company policy by wearing the Sketchers shoes. This shows an acquiescence of the Respondent to the shoes the
Petitioner normally wore to work. Furthermore, notwithstanding the above analysis, the Arbitrator finds the
Respondent failed to affirmatively prove that Petitioner was in violation of company policy. Petitioner testified
she was wearing Sketcher brand “winter style” shoes. Petitioner maintained the shoes were not gym shoe #nd
were not in violation of company policy. Petitioner testified she wore those shoes routinely to work and was
never reprimanded by Respondent. Respondent’s witnesses confirmed that Petitioner was not reprimanded, and
that “winter style shoes” were acceptable. ' I : '

The Arbitrator finds that, regardless of this safety violation dispute, the act of wearing gym shoes is not a bar to
compensability because Petitioner was still within the “sphere of employment” at the time of the accident. The
Petitioner was a bus monitor walking through the parking lot to the bus. The parking lot where Petitioner fell
was not open to the public. Only employees of Respondent had access to the parking lot. As part of her job
duties, Petitioner had to walk through the parking lot to get to the bus multiple times daily. The accident
occurred when it was dark outside (6:30 am in January). Petitioner was “doing exactly the thing she was
employed to do” when she fell in the parking fot on her way to monitor the bus. J. 5. Masomy, Inc. v. Industrial
Comm’n, 861 N.E.2d 202 (2006). Therefore, cven if Petitioner was wearing gym shoes in violation of the
company policy, the violation is not a bar to compensability, because the act of walking through the parking lot
to the bus to monitor the bus was within the sphere of employment and is thus compensable under J.S. Masonry.

While the Respondent has cited a number of Corimission cases that have denied benefits based on the violation
of company rules, the Arbitrator notes that these cases are not of tru¢ precedential value as our supreme and
appellate courts have identified the bases for making the necessary determinations in this case. Additionally,
without more it is impossible for the Arbitrator to determine the final outcome of those cited cases.

The Arbitrator did locate one fairly recent case where the appellate court determined that the violation of a
safety rule resulted in the case being determined to be non-compensable, Saunders v. Industrial Comm 'n, 301
1L App.3d 643, 235 1l1.Dec. 490, 705 N.E.2d 103 (1998). In that casc a worker was riding double on a forklift,
in violation of safety rules, to go and take his lunch, and stepped off the moving lift. The court distinguished
cases where an employee did permitted work in a prohibited manner versus an employee engaging in prohibited
duties that were personal to the employee, such as riding double on a forklift in order to go to funch. This case is
clearly distinguishable from the case at bar. o PR ' '

WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE (F), IS THE PETITIONER’S PRESENT CONDITION OF ILL-BEING
CAUSALLY RELATED TO THE INJURY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

The Petitioner testified that she struck her posterior head and back when she slipped and fell on 1/23/19. The
initial reports from Ingalls and South Holland Medical Center are consistent with her report. While her initial
head injury appears to have been minor, the remainder of the medical records indicate mainly ongoing low back
complaints. Treating physicians Dr. Foreman and Dr. Najera have opined to a causal relationship, and while she
may disagree on the specific diagnoses, Respondent’s Section 12 Examiner Dr. Wehner also opined that her
diagnoses were causally related to the 1/23/19 accident.
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- The Arbrtrator ﬁnds that the Petltroner 8 cewxeal and Iumbar strams head mjury and eoccyx contusron were 0

o causally related to the 1/23/19. accident. While the Arbitrator notes that the Petitioner did strike her head ‘and :

* 'may have sustained'a cervical strain, all complamts and treatment after the m:tral 1/23/19 vrsrt to the Ingalls ER o
'.have been related only to the lumba1 Spme Lo : R R EI

3 "WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE
PETITIONER REASONABLE AND NECESSARY AND HAS RESPONDENT PAID ALL
“APPROPRIATE CHARGES FOR ALL REASO‘\IABLE AND VECESSARY VIEDICAL SERVICES ¥

o .THE ARBITRAT{)R FI\IDS AS F {)LLOWS

_:_':_._The Arbztrator adopts the conciusrons in- part (F) above Therefore Respondent shall pay Petmoner the .':'Z-
: __foIiowmg medrcai briIs per the, Illmors fee schedule SRR ) S R R

B :-AMC-IQ.' B TR P I PR EER S U-.$1429oo :
EQMD R T A i ._..$169573____._ R
| -'TOTAL ' e '_ ._'-j$13 167 7

 WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE 2 (K), IS PETITIONER E\TTITLED TO ANY PROSPECTIVE MEDICAL":' _-

CARE, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS FOLLOWS:

T .:"':Based ona rev1ew of the eornp"iete medrcal records the Arbltrator ﬁnds that the Petrtroner reached maxrmum B

~medical: improvement as: of 3/18/19 visit of Dr. Najera Dr. Wehner had already previously ‘opined ‘that

" J ' WERE THE MEDICAL SERVICES THAT WERE PROVIDED TO : -

~ Petitioner had reached MMI on 2/25/19. While Dr. Najera recommended an orthopedic evaluation and that he =~

~disagreed with Dr.. ‘Wehner’s conclusions, the Arbitrator notes that the Petlttoner s FCE appear$ to have some
type of invalidity issues: with’ regard to the Petitioner’s performance. She was released to full work duties by Dr.
. Wehner, Her MRI appears to show. age-appropriate ‘degenerative changes for a 69 year old woman. While Dr.”
‘Najera continued her off work pending orthopedic evaiuatlon the Arbitrator accepts ‘the orthopedlc evaluation
" of Dr, Wehner. The Arbltrator notes that the Petitioner’s 30b appears to be relatively sedentary, desprte what is
indicated in‘the FCE Teport, as her only’ descrrptmn of her jobis waikmg to and from her assigned buses and
monitoring the ‘school bus. Neither Dr. Foreman nor Dr. Najera indicated their basis for contrnumg to ‘hold
_ Petrtioner off work The prepondcrance of the evrdence supports that the Petrtloner reached MMI as of 3/ 1 8/ 19

WITH RESPECT T{) ISSUE (L), WHAT AVIOUVT OF COMPENSATIO’\I IS DUE FOR
TEMPORARY ' TOTAL  DISABILITY, = TEMPORARY PARTIAL DISABILITY ANDIOR
MAINTENANCE THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS FOLLOWS '

The Arbrtrator ﬁncls that the Petltloner was temporarliy totally drsabled from 1/24/ 19 through 3/18/ 19, based on
the findings noted above with regard to accident, causation and MML
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Page 1
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) _ ' X} Afﬁrm and adopt {no changes) D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d)) '
) SS_- - D Affirm with changes s '_ D Rate Ad}ustment Fund (§8(g))
COUNTY OF MADI_S_-ON ) D Reverse | 1 L] second Ijury Fund $8)18)
: ' ' . o . ; __ S . D I’TD/Fatal demed '
DModify SR PR .None of the above -
BEF ORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION
. -.'Jackie Nash
_ Petltlon_er,_ S - . :
LS. : Lo ' NO IIWC36052 '_ s e
s 201 ee_492_
' Respondent. | R S

' DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

_ Tnnely Pet:tlon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by the Pet1t10ner herem and notxce gwen to
all parties the Comm1ss1on after cons1denng thei issues. of med1ca1 ‘expenses, tempora:y total

: -dzsablhty, permanent partlal disa’olhty and being adVISed of the facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts
_.the Demsmn of the Arbltrator, whlch is attached hereto and made a part hereof B '

. IT s TI—IEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Demsmn of the
Arb1trator ﬁled October 16 2019 is hereby afﬁnned and adopted

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to _
Pet;t:oner Interest under §19(n) of the Act if any '

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shall have
credit for all amounts pa1d 1f any, to or on behalf of the Pet1t10ner on account ow acc:1de al

mjury -

2 - ?.B'le
DATED: SEP- R | _ I
TIT:yl : _ Thomas J. Tyrrell

0 7/14/20
51

Maria E. Portela

Kathx_'yn A_. Doerries
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EmployeeIPetItzoner

SIUE R
Employer/Respondent

Caseft

U :I_I_INOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION
o NOTICE OF ARB!TRATOR DECISION

11WC036052
1 1wc036053 |
14WC027733

R0IWCC0492

On 10/ 16/201 9 an arb1trat10n demsmn on thlS case was filed wrth the Illmors Workers Compensatron
Commlssron 1n Clucago a copy of whrch is enclosed '

If the Comnnsswn revrews ’thls award mterest of 1. 62% shall accrue frorn the date listed above ‘co the day
before the date of payment however if an employee s appeal results in elther no change or a decrease in this

award lnterest shall not accrue

A copy of this decision is ma_il_ed to .the following parties:

4888  SHORT & DAUGHERTY PC
KEITH SHORT

325 MARKET ST

ALTON, iL 62002

6147 ASSESTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
CORi STEWART

201 W POINTE DR SUITE 7

SWANSEA, IL 62226

0498 STATE OF ILLINOIS
ATTORNEY GENERAL

100 W RANDOLPH ST 13TH FL
CHICAGO, IL 60601-3227

0904 STATE UNIVERSITY RETIREMT SYS
PO BOX 2710 STATION A
CHAMPAIGN, IL. 61825

D499 CMS RISK MANAGEMENT
1801'S SEVENTH ST 8M

PO BOX 19208

_ SPRINGFIELD IL 62794-9208

CERTIFIED as a trus and correct copy
pursuant 1o 820 1LES 305114

0CT 16 2019
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
: )S8. . : S D Rate Adjustrient Fund {§8(g))
COUNTY OF Madison ) | o ] second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
' : o ' - s . None of the above

ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION |

| ARBITRATION DECISION. |

JackieNash o Case#11W036052
.En‘iPIGYee/I_’etitioner ’ S : N : s
v, : R DR _ Consohdated cases: 11 WC 36053
St S RIS S R 14W027733
Empmyemespondem S SR A S

An Apphcatzon for Aayustment of Clazm was ﬁled in thrs matter and a Notzce of Hearmg was malled to, each o
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable William R, Gallagher Atrbitrator of the Commission, in the city

of Collinsville, on August 27,2019, After reviewing all of the evidence presented the Arbltrator - hereby makes
ﬁndings on the drsputed issues checked below and attaches those ﬁndmgs to thls document e

DISPUTED ISSUES

A. D Was Respondent operatlng under and subj ect to the 111111013 Workers Compensation or Occupatronal
- Diseases Act? - o R _

D Was there an employee employer relatlonshrp‘? : : :
IZ D1d an accrdent occur that arose out of and in the eourse of Petltloner S employment by Respondent‘?
|: What was the date of the accident? : ' '
|Xf Was timely notice of the accxdent glven to Respondent‘7 _ :
X Is Petitioner' s current cond1t1on of ill- berng causally related to the mjury’?
] what were Petitioner's camnings? R
E What was Petltroner s age at the tlrne of the aceident‘?
I:] What was Petltloner $ marltal status at the trme of the accrdent"
D Were the medical services that were provrded to Petitioner reasonable and necessary? Has Respondent
- paid all approprrate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical serv1ces7
What temporary benefits are in drspute‘? '
CJTPD - O Maintenance D TTD
L. . What is the nature and extent of the 1n3ury‘7
M. D Should penaltres or fees be imposed upon Respondent?
N. D Is Respondent due any credit?
0. [ JOther -

SrEemmUOW

7~

ICArbDec 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60601 312/814-6611  Toll-free §66/352-3033  Web site: www.iwec.il gov
Downstate offices: Co_llinsvi!!e 618/346-3450  Peoria 309/671-3019 Roclkford 815/987-7291 Springfield 217/785-7084
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FINDINGS

On July 23, 2008, Respondent was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between Petitioner and Respondent,

On this date, Petitioner did sustain an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment.
Timely notice of this accident was given to Respondent.

Petitioner's current condition of ill-being is not causally related to the accident.

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner eamed $33,733.44; the average weekly wage was $648.72.
On the date of accident, Petitioner was 55 years of age, single with 0 dependent child(ren).

Petitioner has received all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent has paid all appropriate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent shall be given a credit of $0.00 for TTD, $0.00 for TPD, $0.00 for maintenance, and $0 00 for other
benefits, for a total credit of $0.00.

Respondent is entitied to a credit of $0.00 paid under Section 8(3) of the Act.

ORDER
Based upon the Arbitrator’s Conclusion of Law attached hereto, no permanent partial disability benefits are awarded.

RULES REGARDING AppeaLs Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision,

and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of
the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of
Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if
an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not accrue.

//Cma,« - October 14, 2019

William R. Gallagher, Afvitrator Date
ICA®bDec p. 2
OCT 16 208
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F 1nd1ngs of Fact

. 'Pet1t1oner ﬁled three Appheatlons for Ad;ustment of Clann whreh alleged he sustamed accrdental
injuries. ansmg out.of and in the course of his employment by Respondent. Incase. number 11
WC 36052, on- September 19, 2011, Petitioner filed ‘an Application- wlnch alleged that’on -

~November 4,°2009, Petitioner "shpped on spﬂled water" and ‘sustained an mjury ‘to_his. "R1ght
wrist & neck” (Respondent‘s Exthibit . l) On March .7, 2019 Petltloner filed ‘an: Amen_ded :

} _Appllca‘non which alleged that on: Juiy 23, 2008 Petltloner "shpped on sp1lled water" 'élnd_ o
-sustamed an 1njury to hJS “nght wnst and neck" (Arbltrator ) Exh1b1t 1) : :

-'.;In oase number 11 WC 36053 on Iuly 20 2011 Petltloner ﬁled an Apphcatron whreh alleged -

. that on. February 18, 2010, Pet1t1oner sustarned a repeutlve trauma mJury to “both ‘wrists and
_ erows" (Respondents Exlnblt 3). On. May 2 2013 Petitioner ﬁled an Amended Appheatmn g
~which alleged that on- February 18,2010, Petitioner sustained an injury to the "Body asa whole". ..
as‘a result of: "chalrs falling down". At tnal Petmoners eounsel made an oral motion to amend -
the date of aeerdent to'F ebruary 17,-2011. The motion was granted by the Arb:trator and the date a
' of acc1dent was changed by mterhneanon (Arbltrator s EXhlbIt 3) PR -

In case number 14 WC 27733 on August 18 2014 Pentroner ﬁied an Apphcatron whleh alleged

‘a date of accident of- February 16,2012, and Petitioner ‘sustained "Repetitive. trauma®’ to " his

"Bilateral: Hands ‘Bilateral Elbows" (Respondent's Exhibit 5)..0n May 2,:2019, Petrt:oner filed

- an-Amended- Apphcatlon which alleged "Repet1t1ve traurna" to “Brlateral hands bﬂateral elbows y
'cerv:leal splne” (Arbltrators Exhrblt 4) R '

- Pet1t10ner sought ﬁnal awards in all three cascs. Respondent d1sputed llabﬂlty in’ ail three cases
R on the bas1s of acerdent notree and causal relatlonshlp (Arbnrator s EXlllblt 1) g

'Petmoner worked as a mamtenanee person at the East St Louls eampus of Southern Ilhnors '
'.Umversxty Edwardsvﬂle and began his employment with Respondent in April, 2004. At trial,
Petitioner testified that on July 23, 2008, he walked into a classroom to determine why the lights
were not workmg At that time, Petitioner sl;pped ina puddle of water and fell baokwards When
he did so, Petmoner testified he struck his nght wrist and upper back/neck on a doorframe '
Petitioner stated ‘he informed George Johnson his supervisor; of the accident and an accident
report. was prepared ‘At trial, there were no Teports regardlng the accident of July 23, 2008,

.tendered into evidence: Whlle Respondent dlsputed acc1dent and nouce Johnson dld not testxfy
at tr1al : . . . : : _

Following the accident, Petitioner was seen in the ER of Alton Memorial Hospital. According to
the history in the hospital records, Petitioner shpped in a puddle of water and fell: slamming his
left wrist (not his right) on a door panel, X-rays were taken of Petitioner's left wrist, which were
. negatlve for fractures and Petitioner was diagnosed with a left ‘wrist sprain. There was no
reference in the hospital records regarding Petitioner having any upper back/neck symptoms
(Respondent's Exhibit 18). At trial, Petltloner testrﬁed he only nnssed one day of Work and
returned to work to hrs regular _]ob

JackleNashv SIUE . S 11WC 36052
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Petitioner subsequently sought medical treatment frorn Dr. David Brown, an orthopedic surgeon,
who evaluated Petitioner on August 13, 2008. At that time, Petitioner informed Dr. Brown that
he sustained an injury to his left wrist when he fell into a steel doorway and struck his left wrist
on the doorframe. There was no reference to Petitioner having sustained a neck injury. Dr.

Brown opined Petitioner had ulnar sided wrist pain and ordered an MRI scan (Respondent’s
Exhibit 15).. ' :

The MRI was performed on September 16, 2008. According to the radiologist, the MRI revealed
a small protruding cyst with adjacent joint effusion (Respondent's Exhibit 15).

When Dr. Brown saw Petitioner on September 16, 2008, he reviewed the MRI scan and opined
Petitioner had a traumatically induced ganglion cyst. He subsequently performed a surgical
excision of the ganglion cyst on October 31, 2008 (Respondent's Exhibit 15).

Following surgery, Dr. Brown ordered four weeks of therapy. He discharged Petitioner from care
on December 8, 2008. All of Dr. Brown's medical records provided to Petitioner's employer,
"Cathy Meyers, SIU Edwardsville" (Respondent's Exhibit 15).

At trial, Tayanna Crowder testified for Respondent. Crowder is Respondent's Workers'
Compensation Coordinator. Crowder testified she did a thorough search of computer databases
to determine if an accident report was prepared for an accident sustained by Petitioner on July

23, 2008. Crowder stated she could find no evidence Petitioner reported an accident as having
occurred on that date.

On cross-examination, Crowder was shown a medical report from Dr. David Brown dated
August 13, 2008 (which, as noted herein, was Dr. Brown's initial visit with Petitioner). Crowder
agreed it was directed to Cathy Meyers in Respondent's Benefits Administration Department.
Crowder agreed it appeared Meyers had referred Petitioner to Dr. Brown for treatment related to
an injury sustained by Petitioner on July 23, 2008, when Petitioner slipped in water and struck
his wrist. Crowder conceded Dr. Brown's report was evidence Reéspondent had notice of
 Petitioner having sustained an accident on July 23, 2008.

Petitioner testified at length regarding his job duties. Petitioner performed maintenance tasks
both outside on the grounds of the campus as well as building maintenance. Petitioner worked at
the East St. Louis campus of SIU, an area of approximately 30 acres of ground. Petitioner's
outside duties included trimming bushes, using both push and riding lawnmowers, using a
backpack leaf blower, using a weed eater and, in the winter months, snow removal when
necessary. Petitioner estimated that performing the aforementioned tasks would take eight to 10
hours a day. Petitioner's inside maintenance duties included moving classroom furniture,

repairing equipment, various building maintenance tasks, etc. Respondent offered no testimony
regarding Petitioner's job duties.

As noted herein, in case 14 WC 27733, the Amended Application alleged a date of accident
(manifestation) of February 16, 2012, and Petitioner sustained repetitive trauma to his bilateral
upper extremities (Arbitrator's Exhibit 4). Respondent tendered into evidence a Notice of Injury
form completed and signed by Petitioner on November 16, 2010, which described repetitive

- Jackie Nash v. SIUE 11 WC 36052
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'trauma to Petltloners neck and hands and mdzcated the date of acc1dent of November 4 2009
(Respondent‘s EXhlblt 6). Respondent tendered. into evidence a.Form 45 dated February 10,
2011, which was- un31gned but indicated Petitioner. sustained repet1t1ve trauma to his'neck and
noted the date of accident was Noveraber 4, 2009 (Respondent s Exhibit 7). Respondent te:ndered .
-into “evidence ‘a. Notlce of Injury- cornpleted/srgned by Petitioner on March 2, 2011, which
indicated: Petitioner sustained "Repentlve Duty’s" to-his hand, ﬁngers, wrist and: upper forearm
“and noted the date of accident ‘was’ February 18; 2010 (Respondent's Exhibit 8). Respondent

: tendered into ev1dence a Form: 45 dated ‘February 16 2011, ‘which was uns:tgned ‘but indicated -

- Petitioner* sustained: “Repetztlve Motion' to his wrist and carpal tunnei and noted the date of '

_ accrdent was February 18 2010 (Respondent‘s EXhlblt 9) B : :

-In regard to Pentzoners repetltzve trauma mjury to hls arrns/hands Petttloner was' initially seen
by Dr. Michael Beatty, an orthopedlc ‘surgeon, on: September 7, 2011. Petitioner informed Dr.
Beatty he had complaints referable to both hands and he also advised Dr. Beatty he did a lotof

; ~weed eating and used power tools. Dr.. ‘Beatty oplned Petitioner- had ‘bilateral carpal and ulnar -

: fneuropathy Dr Beatty noted he wanted to rev1ew Petrtroners 30b descnptlon (Petltloners
-_.ExhlbztS) g : ST ST e _ SE

) At the drrectron of Respondent Dr Anthony Sudekum a hand surgeon exammed Petltloner on
January 26,:2012. In connection” with his" examination of Petitioner, Dr. Sudekum reviewed
medical records’ and data regarding Petitioner's job' dutles, the Iatter of Whlch included a position
: descnpuon and "Demands of the Job" form Dr. Sudekum opmed Petmoner had bliateral carpal

B tunnel and: cubital turinel syndrome for which’ surgery was appropriate. In regard to causahty, Dr.

_Sudekum opined Petitioner's ;job duties caused and/or aggravated Petmoners carpal tunnel and 3
i;eubltal tu:mel condltlons (Petmoners Exhlbrt 10) - e SN '

Dr. Beatty subsequently performed right carpal and cubrtai tunnel and left carpal and cub1ta1

- tunnel release ‘surgeries on May 30, 2012, and June 27, 2012, respeetlvely Dr. Beatty also
~ performed  an -excision of a ganghon cyst from Pet1t1oners rlght wrist on August 8, 2012
(Petltloner s Exhrblt 8) : : > - '

'Dr Beatty was deposed on December 6 2011 and hIS deposruon testlmony was reeelved tnto
evidence at trial. Obwously, Dr.- Beatty was ~deposed prior to his performing surgery ‘on
Petitioner. Dr. Beatty ‘reaffirmed  his opnuon regardmg his’ d1agn<>31s of bilateral carpal and
cubital tunnel syndrome and: Pentloner was in need of surgery. In regard to causahty, Dr. Beatty
stated he had reviewed Petmoners job description which ‘was provided by Respondent and
opined there was a causal ‘relationship between Petitioner's job' duties and the upper extrermty '
condmons he dlagnosed and treated (Pet1t1oners Exh1b1t 3 pp 15- 23)

Respondent 1n1t1a11y accepted Petltloners carpal tunnel and cubltai tunnel syndrorne cond1t10ns
as being compensable and paid medical bills and temporary total disability benefits. However, at
trial, Respondent dlsputed liability on'the ’basus of accrdent notrce and causal relatronsth
(Arb1trator s E)dublt 1) : : -

In regard to Petlnoners neck/cerv1ca1 spine - condmon Petmoner testlﬁed he has had neck
problems for a number of years. On September 30, 2001, Petitioner went to the ER of Alton

Jackie Nash v. SIUE 7 11WC 36052
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Memorial Hospital because of neck pain. X-rays were taken which revealed mild degenerative

disc disease at C5 and C7, minimal margmal spurrting and mild facet osteoarthritis (ReSpondent‘
Exhibit 18). -

_Peutmner was subseﬁ;uently seen by Dr. Rajnikani Patel, an internist, on October 1, 2001. Dr.
Patel diagnosed Petitioner as having sustained a neck muscle strain. Dr. Patel prescribed
medication for both Petitioner's neck symptoms and depression (Respondent's Exhibit 14).

Petitioner was later seen by Dr. Daniel Scodary, a neurosurgeon, on February 8, 2010, for neck
symptoms. At that time, Petitioner advised Dr. Scodary the symptoms had started three months
prior. Dr. Scodary reviewed an MRI scan of Petitioner's cervical spine (the date of the scan was
not indicated) and opined it revealed mild stenosis and degenerative disc disease. Dr. Scodary

recommended Petitioner be referred to Dr. Gregory Stynowick, a pam management specialist
(Petitioner's Exhibit 14).

Petitioner was seen by Dr. Patel on April 28, 2010, who evaluated him for both his carpal tunnel
syndrome and neck symptoms. Dr. Patel opined Petitioner had cervical radiculopathy and that he
should return to Dr. Scodary (Respondent's Exhibit 14).

Dr. Scodary saw Petitioner on April 29, 2010, and noted Petitioner had not been seen by Dr.
Stynowick as he had recommended. He renewed his recommendation Petitioner go to Dr.
Stynowick (Petitioner's Exhibit 14).

Dr. Stynowick saw Petitioner on May 6, 2010. At that time, Dr. Stynowick administered an

epidural steroid injection at C7-T1. He also ordered an MRI scan of Petitioner's cervical spine
(Petitioner's Exhibit 15).

The MRI was performed on May 12, 2010. According to the radiologist, there were no disc
herniations, but disc bulges at C3-C4, C5-C6 and C6-C7 (Petitioner's Exhibit 16).

Dr. Stynowick subsequently saw Petitioner in May/June, 2010 and administered additional
epidural steroid injections as well as medial branch nerve blocks. Dr. Stynowick diagnosed
Petitioner with cervical radiculitis and cervical spondylosis. He directed Petitioner to follow up

with Dr. Scodary (Petitioner's Exhibit 15). However, Petitioner did not follow up with Dr.
Scodary.

At trial, Petitioner testified that en February 18, 2011 {which he later said may have been
February 17, 2011), he was pushing a wheeled cart that had a number of chairs stacked on it.

Some chairs fell off of the cart stnkmg Petitioner in the shoulder and neck area and caused him
to fall to the ground

As previously noted herein, Respondent. tendered into evidence a Notice of Injury dated
November 16, 2010, which noted Petitioner sustained repetitive trauma to his neck/arms and
indicated that date of accident of November 4, 2009 (Respondent's Exhibit 6). Respondent
tendered into evidence a First Report of Injury dated February 10, 2011, which indicated

Jackie Nash v. STUE 11 WC 36052
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Petitioner sustained **R@eﬁtn&é Moﬁon to the neck and mdlcated a date of a001dent of
November4 2009 (Respondent's Exh1b1t 7) : :

Respondent tendered mto ev1denee a Notlce of In_]ury completedf31gned by Petltloner dated
March 7, 2011, which indicated Petitioner sustamed an injury on February 17, 2011, when s some
"carts" fell on him causing him to sustain an injury to his right hand/wrist and nght There was
no reference to Pet1t10ner havmg sustamed a neck 1n3ury (Respondent’s Exhrblt 10)

'Respondent tendered mto ev1dence a wztness statement dated February 17 2011 of Edward
Florian, one of Petitioner's co-workers. Fiorlan noted Petrtloner was: moving chair haulers and
that he shpped and fell forward He prowded assistarice to Petitioner. afterward and noted his
- wiist (he did not’ spee1fy right or Teft) was swollen and brutsed Florran drd not note Petﬁloner
E 'had sustalned a neck m_]ury (Respondent‘s EXhlblt 1 1) SR

Petitloner sought medrcal treatment at the ER of Alton Memonal Hospltal on February 17 201 1
Accordlng to the hospltal record ‘Petitioner fell on his outstretched right hand. He was diagnosed
with abrasions, a wrist sprain and chronic carpal tunnel syndrome There was no reference in the
record to Peutloner havmg any neck symptoms (Respondent’s Exh1b1t 18) E

At the dzrectton of Respondent Petitioner was exammed by Dr Dav1d Robson an oxthopedlc
surgeon,-on September 6,2012. In cormection with his examination of Petitioner, Dr, ‘Robson
reviewed medical records prov1ded to him by Respondent Dr. Robson also reviewed information

_ -regardlng Petitioner's work-related -accidents. In regard to- the: accrdent of July 23,2008, Dr..

~Robson noted Petmoner was walking into a elassroom, sllpped/feﬂ in‘water ‘and mjured his’ left
wrist ‘and ‘neck. Dr. Robson noted the. Ftrst Report of Injury in" which Petitioner - claimed the
repet1t1ve motron reqmred by hIS _]Ob caused him’ to ‘sustain‘a neck i injury on November 4,72009.
Dir. ‘Robson also noted that ‘on February - 17, 2011, Petitioner was pushing. chairs on# dolly and
some of the chairs fell forward onto Pet1t10ner s nght arm/wrlst (Petltloners Exhﬂ:ut 55
Deposmon Exhiblt 2) ' : :

Dr Robson dlagnosed Petmoner w1th cerv1cal spondylosrs In regard to eausahty, Dr. Robson
noted Petitioner had conﬂlctmg dates of i injury as to which caused his neck symptoms. He noted
Petitioner claimed his neck pain began on November 4, 2009, but the record indicated Petitioner
first reported neck pain on July 23,-2008. Dr Robson noted that, in regard to the February 17,
2011, accident, Petitioner only reported an injury to his right wrist/arm, nothmg regarding the
cervical ‘spine. Dr. Robson opined Petitioner's cervical spine condition was not related to the
repetltwe motlon of Petitioner’s _]Ob (Petltloner 8 Exhlbrt 5 Deposﬂ:lon Exhibit 2)

On November 26 20}2 Petltioner was evaluated by Dr Dav1d Raskas an orthopedlc surgeon.
Petitioner informed Dr. Raskas that he sustained an accident in 2009 when he slipped and fell
backwards and sustained an injury to his neck and shoulder (Petitioner was, in fact, apparently
referring to the accident of July 23, 2008). Petitioner also informed Dr. Raskas that in 2011 a

stack of chairs fell on him causing him to sustain mjunes to his right wrist and neck (Pet1t10ner ]
Exhibit 6). :

Jackie Nash v. STUE . - 11TWC 36052
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When seen by Dr, Raskas, Petitioner complained of a decreased range of motion of his neck and
shoulders. Dr. Raskas ordered x-rays of the cervical spine which revealed a spondylolisthesis at
(C7-T1, degenerative disc disease at C5-C6 and C6-C7 and retrolisthesis at C5-C6. Dr. Raskas

opined Petitioner had C8 radiculopathy and recommended a CT myelogram of the cervical spine
(Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Dr. Raskas saw Petitioner on December 5, 2012, and reviewed the CT myelogram. He opined it
revealed a herniated disc at C4-C5 with severe spinal stenosis, but that most of Petitioner's
symptoms were coming from the C7-T1 level. He recommended Petitioner undergo some nerve

root blocks at C5 and C8, but indicated he might recommend Petitioner undergoing a fusion at
C4-C5 and C7-T1 (Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Petitioner was seen by Dr. Barry Feinberg, a pain management specialist, on December 17, 2012.
Dr. Feinberg diagnosed Petitioner with cervical radiculopathy and administered a series of
epidural steroid injections (Petitioner's Exhibit 7).

Dr. Raskas continued to treat Petitioner. On September 20, 2013, Dr. Raskas performed surgery
which consisted of a partial vertebrectomy at C4 and C7, anterior discectomies and fusions at
C5-C6 and C6-C7, a fusion at C7-T1 and plating from C4 to T1 (Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Dr. Raskas saw Petitioner following surgery, but when he evaluated Petitioner on July 28, 2014,
he opined the fusion had not fully healed. Ultimately, Dr. Raskas performed a second surgery on
December 4, 2014, a fusion with instrumentation at C4-C35 (Petitioner's Exhibit 6; Petitioner's
Exhibit 1, Deposition Exhibit 2),

Following the second surgery, Petitioner continued to be treated by Dr. Raskas and Dr. Feinberg.
When Dr. Raskas saw Petitioner on April 20, 2015, he opined the fusion the solid, but
recommended Petitioner continue treating with Dr. Feinberg (Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Dr, Feinberg saw Petitioner and administered facet injections at C3-C4 from June, 20135, through
February, 2016. Petitioner did experience some relief of his symptoms (Petitioner's Exhibit 7).

At the direction of Respondent, Petitioner was again examined by Dr. Robson on June 2, 2015.
Dr. Robson noted Petitioner had undergone two fusion procedures performed by Dr. Raskas

since his prior examination. Petitioner continued to complain of pain of 5 out of 10 (Petitioner's
Exhibit 5; Deposition Exhibit 3).

Dr. Robson again opined as to causality. In regard to the accident of July 23, 2008, Dr. Robson
noted Petitioner did not complain of any neck symptoms subsequent to the accident, only wrist
pain. In regard to the repetitive trauma injury with the date of accident of November 4, 2009, Dr.
Robson opined it was difficult to determine within a degree of medical certainty whether
Petitioner sustained a neck injury because of repetitive trauma. He opined Petitioner had pre-

existing cervical spondylosis which caused bim to have neck pain (Petitioner's Exhibit 5;
Deposition Exhibit 3).

Jackie Nash v. SIUE 11 WC 36052
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On July 12 2019 Dr. Raskas prepared a medleal report in: Wthh he opmed he had reieased '
Petitioner from care ‘and Petitioner was at MML He also noted Petitioner would require pain

management in the form of medleatrons and/or mjeetlons because of Petmoners chremc pam
(Petltleners Exhrbrt 28) e : L

Petltroners counsel had Petltloner evaluated by J Stephen Dolan a voeatronal rehabrhtatron
'expert on -April- 10, 2018. Doian reviewed Petitioner's education/work hlstory and various
‘medical reports/reeords pr0v1ded to him: by Petitioner's counsel He also admrmstered a number
of tests to Petitioner. Dolan noted Petitioner was subject to numerous restrictions,: had poor
acadermc skills and had worked prrmanly asa mamtenance/groundskeeper ‘but had’ previously
worked as a truck driver. He ‘opined Petitioner did not have access to'a reasonably stable labor'
market (Petr‘uoner s Exhlbrt 4 Deposrtlon Exh1b1t 2) ' : SR

_ -_Dr Raskas ‘was deposed on March 9 2015 and hrs deposrtron testrmony was reeerved mto'
.ev1denee at tnal In regard to. h15 dragnosrs and treatment ‘of . Pentloner, Dr: Raskas testlmony _
‘was: consrstent with his medical records and he reafﬁrmed the opiniohs contarned therein. When
questroned about the hrstory Petitioner provided to him; Dr. ‘Raskas: testlﬁed Petitioner advised
“that in 2009 he slipped-and- fell. backwards on” some hquld injuring ‘his neck and ‘shoulder.
Petitioner also: mformed hrm that in 2010, but it was aetually February 17, 2011, Petitioner Had a
stack of chairs fall on him. Dr. Raskas epmed the accidents could have eaused or aggravated the
condition i in Petltloners cerv1ea1 spme whreh led hrm to perfermmg two surgenes (Petrtroners

. ._Exhrbrtl pp 6 21 22)

'.'_On Cross- examrnatren Dr Raskas agreed that 1f the h:tstery ef the accrdents Pet1t10ner pr0v1ded
10 him and his condition prior to them was different than what Petitioner had advrsed his: ‘opinion
regardmg causality nnght change. Dr. Raskas’ also-testified he did not believe. Petitioner had any
treatment for eervreal splne symptoms pnor to 2009 (Petrtloners Exhrbrt 1 pp 29 30 32)

Dr Femberg was deposed on June 3 2016 and hrs deposrtlon testnnony was reeelved mto
evidence at trial. In regard to the treatment provrded to Petitioner, Dr. Feinberg's testrmony was
consistent with his medical records and he reaffirmed the opinions. contained -therein. Dr.
Femberg testrﬁed that when he 1n1t1aHy evaIuated Petitioner on December 12, 2012, Petitioner
gave & history of shppmg and falling on some water which caused him to hit his head, neck and
shoulder on a doorframe. Petitioner also advised his condition worsened because of his _]Ob duties
and was agam mjured when a stack of eharrs fell on hrm (Petltloner s Exhrbzt 2 p 7)

In regard to eausahty, Dr Fernberg tesnﬁed the £w0 accrdents eould have eaused or eontrrbuted
to Petitioner's neck condition. He based this on the history Petitioner provided to him and the
symptoms Petrtroner had for Whrch he had treated hrm (Petrtroner s Exhrbrt 2; p 21)

On cross- exammatron Dr Femberg tGStlfiCd Petltloner Imtiaﬂy mformed him the accident
occurred in July, 2008, and February, 2009, but he subsequently advised him the accident
involving the chairs oeeurred in early 2011. Petitioner also informed him he had no neck
problems prior to sustaining the slip and fall in the water (Petitioner's Exhibit 2; pp 24-25).
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J. Stephen Dolan was deposed on July 18, 2018, and his deposition testimony was received into
evidence at trial. Dolan's testimony was consistent with his report and he reaffirmed the opinions
contained therein. Specifically, Dolan testified Petitioner was permanently and totally disabled
from gainful employment (Petitioner's Exhibit 4; p 28).

Dr. Robson was deposed on January 10, 2019, and his deposition testimony was received into
evidence at trial. On direct examination, Dr. Robson's testimony was consistent with his medical
report and he reaffirmed the opinions contained therein. Dr. Robson testified Petitioner had
multiple level spondylosis in the neck at C4-C5, C5-C6 and C6-C7. He stated Petitioner
informed him that he had sustained an injury on November 4, 2009, as a result of prolonged use
of a weed eater, but had also sustained an accident on July 23, 2008, when he slipped. He noted
that Petitioner had undergone an x-ray of the cervical spine in 2001 and, when Petitioner had an
MRI performed on November 30, 2009, Petitioner indicated he had neck symptoms for six to
eight months prior. Based upon the preceding, Dr. Robson could not attribute Petitioner's
cervical spine symptoms to an accident of November 4, 2009 (Petitioner's Exhibit 5; p 11).

On cross-examination, Dr. Robson agreed that if Petitioner slipped and fell in water striking his
head and back of his neck on the doorframe, this could aggravatie the pre-existing spondylosis in
the cervical spine. He also agreed that if Petitioner used a weed eater four to six hours a day

during the summer that this could cause his spondylosis to become symptomatic (Petitioner's
Exhibit 5; pp 14-15).

At trial, Petitioner testified he has not worked since October 20, 2012, primarily because of his
neck symptoms. Petitioner apparently began to draw long term disability benefits (not temporary
total disability) at that time. Petitioner testified that he was subsequently informed that those
payments were going to be terminated and, for that reason, he made the decision to retire. The
reason he gave was that he would have no other income. Respondent's counsel tendered into
~ evidence a form (which was not signed by Petitioner) but which indicated a retirement date of

July 1, 2018 (Respondent's Exhibit 17).
Petitioner testified he has not been released to return to work by any of his treating physicians.

Petitioner still continues to complain of severe neck pain as well as numbness in both hands and
forearms.

Conclusions of Law
In regard to disputed issue (C) the Arbitrator makes the following conclusion of law:

The Arbitrator concludes Petitioner sustained an accidental injury arising out of and in the course
of his employment by Respondent on July 23, 2008.

In support of this conclusion the Arbitrator notes the following:
Petitioner testified he sustained a work-related accident on July 23, 2008, when he stepped in a

puddle of water and fell backward. He stated he reported the accident to his supervisor, George
Johnson, but Johnson did not testify when this case was tried.

Jackie Nash v. SIUE 11 WC 36052
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'.When Petrtloner was seen in the ER of Alton Memonal Hosprtal on’ July 23 2008 he adwsed of :
__-the aeeldent and-that he had injured his left wrist. Petitioner. also iaformed Dr, Brown of the

circumstances of the acmdent of July 23, 2008 when he was 1n1t1a11y evaluated by Dr. Brown on
August 13, 2008 . : .

E In regard to dlsputed 1ssue (E) the Arbnrator makes the followmg conelus1on of law

. 'The Arbrtrator concludes Pet1t1oner gave notlce to Respondent of the aeczdent of July 23 2008
o wrthln the trme prescrlbed by the Act . S R :

- 'As aforestated Petltloner testrﬁed he 1nformed h1s superv1sor George Johnson, of the accndent of :
- July 23 2008 but J ohnson d1d not testify at tnal -

'__._;The A:rbltrator notes that all of Dr Brown s treatment records were provrded to Cathy Meyers ._ |
_ 'SIU Edwardsvﬂle e S . ; '

L When Respondents wn:ness Tayana Crowder testtﬁed at tr1a1 she conceded that a copy of Dr
- Brown's: report of August 13, 2008, was prowded 1o Cathy Meyer. {who she 1dent1ﬁed as
_'Respondent's Beneﬁts Adnnmstrator) and 1t ‘was evrdence Respondent had notrce of Petrtloner '
B havmg sustamed a workwreiated accrdent on Juiy 23 2008 :

o Whlle the Amended Apphcatlon erroneously states the 1njury was to the r;ght hand it is elear
- that- Respondent had nonce of Pet1t1oner havmg sustamed a work related acc1dent on July 23,
' '2008 B R SRR : : Pl : _
]_n regard to dlsputed 1ssues (F) and (L) the Arbltrator makes the foIiomng conciusmn of iaw
' 'The Arbrtrator concludes Petltroners current condltron of 111-bemg in regard to his leﬁ hand is
‘not causally related to the accident of July 23, 2008 and there is no permanent partlal drsabahty

'-.to Petrtroner 8 Ieft hand as a result thereof

_ In support of thls conclusron the Arbltrator notes the followmg

As a result of the ace1dent of July 23, 2008 Petltloner sustalned a 1eﬁ wrist spraln and a

: traumatlcally mduced ganghon cyst.

As noted in case number 14 WC 27733 Petltroner subsequentiy sustamed a repetitlve trauma
mjury to both hands/elbows Wthh requrred surgery.

There was no ev1dence Petltloner had any permanent partial drsabrhty attrrbutable to the left
wrist prior to his sustanung the repetitive trauma 1n3ury to both hands/elbows.

//CQQ'WI

W}ihamR Galiagher Arbitra‘{dr
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S_TAT_E OF ILLI_N_OIS k ) a . Afﬁnn and adopt (ne ehanges) D In_]ured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
- ' | )SS. | [] Affirm with changes - | [_] Rate Adjustent Fund (53(2)
COUNTY OF MADISON Yy D Reverse S R [:l Second In_]ury Tund (§8(e)18)
: : AR D PTD/Fatai denied
' l::] Medlfy S .None ofthe above
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION
_J ackle Nash
-Pe_tlt_loner,' L _ _
s e T - NO nwcseos:s-*-_.;_'
woo 201aeew493-
o Respondent | | - . g ' |

) DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

;o Tlmely Petlnon for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁied by the Petttloner herem and not1ce gwen to -
all partles the Comnnssmn after consxderlng thei issues’ of medical expenses, temporary total -

- disability, permanent partzal dxsablhty, and bemg advised of the facts and law, afﬁrms and adopts -
the Deelslon of the Arbltrator whlch is attached hereto and made a paﬁ hereof . -

CITIS THEREFORE ORDERED BY TI—IE COMMISSION that the Dec1szon of the
Arbitrator ﬁled October 16 2019 is hereby afﬁrmed and adopted :

" IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent pay to -
Petltloner 1nterest under §19(n) of the Act 1f any

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Respondent shall have |
credit for all amounts pald if any, to or on behalf of the Petlnoner on account of said aCCIdentai

1njury

DATED: SEP 2- 2“29 S / A 4 /&f”}j 1///// /4
TIT:y1 o 7 Thomasy. Tt /o
0 7/14/20 |
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Ll ILLINOIS WORKERS' COMPENSATION COMMISSION

' AR NOT!CE OF ARBITRATOR DECISION
NASH,JACKIE . Case# 11WC036053
Empf_o'yee/?etitime'r ' ' vcoseoss
' - 14WC027733 o
E_hjpipyerlRéspoedent | o o _. __ _ 20 wgn @ Q 49 3

On 1 0/ 1 6/2019 an arb1trat10n decision on thls case was ﬁled W}th the Ilhnms Workers Compensatlon
Commlsswn n Chieago a copy of whach is enclosed ' S S

If the Comnusswn rev1ews thlS award mterest of 1.62% shall accrue from the date l1sted above to the day
before the date of payment however if an employee s appeal results in e1ther no change ora decrease in thls

award mterest shaﬁ not accrue

A copy of this de_cision is mailed to the following pe.rties:

4888 SHORT&DAUGHERTY PC RS 0409 CMS RISK MANAGEMENT

KEITH SHORT - BD1SSEVENTH STaM
| 325 MARKETST - _ - POBOX 19208 | '

ALTON, IL 62002 - ' . SPRINGFIELD, IL 62794-9208

8147 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
CORI STEWART

201 W POINTE DR SUITE 7

SWANSEA, IL 62226

0498 STATE OF ILLINOIS
ATTORNEY GENERAL

106 W RANDOLPH ST 13TH FL
CHICAGO, IL 60601-3227

0804 STATE UNIVERSITY RETIREMT SYS ' CERTIFIED as a true and coerrect copy
PO BOX 2750 STATION A pursuant to 820 ILCS 30614

CHAMPAIGN, IL 61825

0CT 16 201
Bl ol de

¥ Rretten 1 Routks, Assistant Secratary
ioeis Werbers' Sengercativn Commasson
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STATE .OF l_LI.'I-NOIS -_) D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
G )SS. ' D Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g)) - .
COUNTY OF Madison ) | L] Second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
' ' . None of the above - -

ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

| ARBITRATION DECISION |
JackieNash SRR Case#llWC36053
- Employee/Petitioner S A AT N : o
oo R TP Consohdatedcases 11W036052
SUE AT B 14wcz7733
Employer/Respondent i e T IR R

An Applzcatzon for Aa}ustment of Cla:m was ﬁled in thlS matter and a Notzce of Hearmg was maﬂed to each
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable Wllham R. Gallagher, Arbitrator of the Commission, in the c1ty
of Collmsvﬂle on August 27,2019. “After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the Arbltrator hereby makes
ﬁndmgs on the dlsputed issues checked below and attaches those ﬁndmgs to thls document '

DISPUTED ISSUES

A, D Was Respondent operatlng under and subject to the thms Workers Compensatlon or Occupatlonal
Dlseases Act? ' Lo SRR

D Was there an employee empioyer relatlonshap‘? el . : : N
Eﬂ Did an acmdent oceur. that arose out of and in the course of Pet1t1oner ] empioyment by Respondent‘?
D What was the date of the acc;dent‘? ' .
. Was tnnely notlce of the a001dent glven to Respondent‘? . -
Is Petitioner's current condition of il- bemg causaliy related to the 1njury‘?
D What were Peﬁtzoner s earmngs? REEEE
D What was Petitioner's age at the time of the acezdent‘?
D What was Petltloner 8 marltal status at the time of the accident? o Co .
. Were the medlcai services that were prov1ded to Petitioner reasonable and necessary” Has Respondent
paid all appropnate eharges for alI reasonable and necessary medlcai services?
. <} What temporary benefits are in dlspute‘?
] TPD O Mamtenance : . {JTTD
L. . What is the nature and extent of the njury?
M. D Should penalties or fees be imposed upon Respondent'?
N Is Respondent due any credit?
0. D Other _____

He,m,r:arﬂ.m_c*ow_

?‘q

fCArbDec 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60601 312/814-6611  Tollfree 866/352-3033  Web site: www.iwce.il gov
Downstate offices: Collinsville 618/346-3450 Peoria 309/671-3019 Rockford815/987 7292 Springfield 217/783-7084
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FINDINGS

On February 17, 2011, Respondent was operating under and subject to the provisions of the Act.

On this date, an employee-employer relationship did exist between Petitioner and Respondent.

On this date, Petitioner did sustain an accident that arose out of and in the course of employment.
Petitioner's current condition of ill-being is not causally related to the accident.

In the year preceding the injury, Petitioner earned $33,733.44; the average weekly wage was $648.72.
On the date of accident, Petitioner was 58 years of age, single with 0 dependent child(ren).

Petitioner has received all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent has not paid all appropriate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent shall be given a credit of $§0.00 for TTD, $0.00 for TPD, $0.00 for maintenance, and $0.00 for other
benefits, for a total credit of $0.00.

Respondent is entitled to a credit of amounts paid under Section 8(j) of the Act.

ORDER

Based upon the Arbitrator’s Conclusion of Law attached hereto, claim for compensation is denied.

RULES REGARDING AppEALs Unless a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this decision,

and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the decision of
the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice of
Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment; however, if
an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shali not accrue.

// éégﬁﬂ . October 14, 2019

William R. Gallagher, Afbitrator Date
ICATbDec p. 2

0CT 16 2019
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Flndmgs of Faot

Petztxoner ﬁled three Apphcauons for Adjustment of Cla:m wluoh alleged he sustamed acc1dental

- injuries arlsmg out of and in the course of his employment by Respondent.. In case number- 11: '
- WC 36052, on- September 19,2011, Petitioner filed an’ *Application wh1eh aileged that on
- November 4, 2009, Petitioner "shpped on spilled water" and sustained an ‘injury to his "nght_.

~wrist & neck" (Respondent‘s Exhibit 1), ‘On March 7, 2019; Petitioner filed an Amended

Apphcatlon whlch alleged that on" Juiy 23,2008, Petitioner "shpped on spzlled water“ a:nd- o

: sustamed an m_]ury to lus "nght wnst and’ neck“ (Arb1trator 8 Exlublt 1)

_ .' .In case number 11 WC 36053 on July 20 2011 Petltioner ﬁled an’ Appheauon whlch alleged '
that on Febmary 18; 2010 Petmoner sustained a. repetltlve trauma- injury 10. "both wrists and

:'elbows” (Respondent's EXhlblt 3) On. May 2, 2013 Petitioner ﬁled an: Amended Apphcauon

- _which alleged that on February 18, 2010, Petitioner sustained an injury to the. "Body asa whole".

-as a result of ! chan's falling ‘down". At trial, Pet1t1oners counsel made an oral motion‘to amend
. ‘the dateof. accnient to February 17, 2011; The motion was granted by the Arbitrator and the date'
.of ae01dent was changed by mterlmeanon (Arbztrators Exhlblt 3) '

‘In case number 14 WC 27733 on August 18 2014 Petltloner ﬁled an Apphcatmn whlch alleged o

‘a"date’ of accident of February 16, 2012; .and Petitioner snstamed "Repetitive trauma” to his

- "Bilateral Hands, Bilateral Elbows" (Respondent‘s Exhibit 5) ‘On May 2, 2019, Petitioner filed

- .an Amended Apphcanon which alleged ”Repet1t1ve trauma" to "Bﬂateral hands bzlateral elbows o
v .cervwal spme" (Arbdrators Exlrn‘mt 4) e : ST

'_Petltloner sought ﬁnal awards 1n all three cases Respondent dzsputed hab1l1ty in all three eases
on 1he bas1s of acc1dent notice and eausal relatlonslnp (Arbltrator S Exh1b1t 1) '

Petltloner Worked as a mamtenanee person at the East St Loms campus of Southern Ilhnms
Umver51ty Edwardsvﬂle and- began his- employment wzth Respondent - Apnl 2004. At trial,
'_'Petltioner testified that on July 23,2008, he walked into a classroom to determine why the hghts
- were not working. At that time, Pet1t1oner s11pped ma puddle of water. and fell backwards ‘When
he did-so, _Petxtloner testified he struck his. right wrist and upper back/neck on a ‘doorframe,
‘Petitioner stated ‘he informed George Johnson ‘his supervisor, of the accident and :an ace1dent

report ‘was: ‘prepared. At trial, there were no reports regarding the ‘accident of July 23, 2008,

- tendered into ev1denoe thle Respondent disputed acmdent and notzce Johnson d1d not testify
at tnal S S :

"Followmg the aocuien’s Petltmner was seen in the ER of Alton Meniorial Hospitai Accordmg to

the history in the hospital records, Petitioner slipped i in a-puddle of water and fell slamming his
left wrist (not his right) on a door panel, X-rays were taken of Petitioner's left wrist, which were
negative for fractures and Petitioner was diagnosed with a left wrist sprain, There was no
reference in the hosp1tal records regarding Petitioner having any upper back/neck symptoms
(Respondent's Exhibit 18). At trial, Petitxoner testified he only nnssed one day of work and
retnrned to work to lns regular Job :

: JackleNashv SIUE o N 11WC 36053
. Pagel g o
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Petitioner subsequently sought medical treatment from Dr. David Brown, an orthopedic surgeon,
who evaluated Petitioner on August 13, 2008. At that time, Petitioner informed Dr. Brown that
he sustained an injury to his left wrist when he fell into a steel doorway and struck his left wrist
on the doorframe. There was no reference to Petitioner having sustained a neck injury. Dr.

Brown opined Petitioner had ulnar sided wrist pain and ordered an MRI scan (Respondent's
Exhibit 15). '

The MRI was performéd on September 16, 2008. According to the radiologist, the MRI revealed
a small protruding cyst with adjacent joint effusion (Respondent’s Exhibit 15).

When Dr. Brown saw Petitioner on September 16, 2008, he reviewed the MRI scan and opined
Petitioner had a traumatically induced ganglion cyst. He subsequently performed a surgical
excision of the ganglion cyst on October 31, 2008 (Respondent's Exhibit 15).

FoiloWing surgery, Dr. Brown ordered four weeks of therapy. He discharged Petitioner from care
on December 8, 2008. All of Dr. Brown's medical records provided to Petitioner's employer,
"Cathy Meyers, STU Edwardsville" (Respondent's Exhibit 15).

At trial, Tayanna Crowder testified for Respondent. Crowder is Respondent's Workers'
Compensation Coordinator. Crowder testified she did a thorough search of computer databases
to determine if an accident report was prepared for an accident sustained by Petitioner on July

23, 2008. Crowder stated she could find no evidence Petitioner reported an accident as having
occurred on that date.

On cross-examination, Crowder was shown a medical report from Dr. David Brown dated
August 13, 2008 (which, as noted herein, was Dr. Brown's initial visit with Petitioner). Crowder
agreed it was directed to Cathy Meyers in Respondent's Benefits Administration Department,
Crowder agreed it appeared Meyers had referred Petitioner to Dr. Brown for treatment related to
an injury sustained by Petitioner on July 23, 2008, when Petitioner slipped in water and struck
his wrist. Crowder conceded Dr. Brown's report was evidence Respondent had notice of
Petitioner having sustained an accident on July 23, 2008.

Petitioner testified at length regarding his job duties. Petitioner performed maintenance tasks
both outside on the grounds of the campus as well as building maintenance. Petitioner worked at
the East St. Louis campus of SIU, an area of approximately 30 acres of ground. Petitioner's
outside duties included trimming bushes, using both push and riding lawnmowers, using a
backpack leaf blower, using a weed eater and, in the winter months, snow removal when
necessary. Petitioner estimated that performing the aforementioned tasks would take eight to 10
hours a day. Petitioner's inside maintenance duties included moving classroom furniture,

repairing equipment, various building maintenance tasks, etc. Respondent oftered no testimony
regarding Petitioner's job duties.

As noted herein, in case 14 WC 27733, the Amended Application alleged a date of accident
(manifestation) of February 16, 2012, and Petitioner sustained repetitive trauma to his bilateral
upper exfremities (Arbitrator's Exhibit 4). Respondent tendered into evidence a Notice of Injury
form completed and signed by Petitioner on November 16, 2010, which described repetitive

Jackie Nash v. SIUE 11 WC 36053
Page 2
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:trauma 0 Pet1t10ners neek and hands and mdxcated the date of ace1dent of November 4 2009
(Respondent's Exlublt 6). Respondent tendered into ev1dence a Form 45 dated February 10,
2011, which was uns1gned but indicated Petitioner sustained repetlttve trayma to his neck and
noted the date of accident was November 4, 2009, (Respondent‘s EXhlblt 7). Respondent tendered_
“into evidence a Notice: of Injury eompleted/szgned by’ Petitioner- on March 2, 2011, which
mdlcated Petitioner sustained "Repetlttve Duty’s" to-his hand;. fingers, wrist and upper forearm
“and hoted: the date ‘of acc1dent was ‘February 18,:2010 (Respondents Exhibit 8). Respondent - -
' 'tendered intoevidence a’ Form 45 dated February 16, 2011 which ‘was unSIgned but-indicated -

‘Petitioner sustained “Repetlttve Motion" to Irus wrist ‘and - carpal tunnei and noted the date of o

' '__aeetdent was’ February 18 2010 (Respondent s Exhlblt 9)

o In regard to Pet1t1oners repet1t1ve trauma mjury to }us arms/hands Petlttoner ‘was 1mt1a11y seen '_ -
by Dr. ‘Michael Beatty, an orthopedtc surgeon, on September 7,:2011.. Petltloner mformed Dr. -

~ Beatty he had eomplalnts referable to both hands and he also advised Dr. Beatty hedida iot of
“weed eatmg and used power tools Dr. ‘Beatty opmed Petitioner. had bilateral carpal and ulnar

' _._neuropathy Dr Beatty noted he wanted to Teview. Pettttoners jOb descnptlon (Petltloners_' o

Bxhibit 8.

_ -At the dlrectlon ef Respondent Dr Anthony Sudekum a hand surgeon exammed Petlttoner on'
- January 26, 2012 In connection wzth his:: exammation of. Petttloner Dr: Sudekum rev1ewed
" medical records and data regardmg Petmoner S jo‘o duties, ‘the Jatter of wlueh inctided a position

. gdescrzptlon and "Demands of the Job" form. Dr Sudekum opmed Petitloner had bilateral carpal -

:'_tunnel and cubital tunnel syndrome for which Surgery was appropriate: In regard to causahty, Dr.
e ;'Sudekum oplned Petitioner's job duties ‘caused and/or aggravated Petmoners carpal tunnel a;nd i
o cubital tunnel COHdItIODS (Petltloners EXhiblt 10) i L

3Dr Beatty subsequently performed nght carpal and cubttal tunnel and 1eft carpal and eubltal-_
- tunnel release surgeries: on-May 30, 2012, and June. 27, 2012 respectlvely Dr. Beatty also

performed an excision of a ganghon cyst frorn Petltloners nght wrzst ‘on August 8, 2012',
(Petmoners Exh1b1t 8) Sl :

-Dr Beatty ‘was deposed on December 6, 2011 and Ins depos1t10n testlmony was recelved mto
evidence ‘at ‘trial. Obvzously, Dr.. Beatty ‘was ' deposed prior to his performing’ surgery on
-~ Petitioner.: Dr. Beatty reaffirmed his opmlon regarding his | dlagnosm of bilateral carpal and

*cubital tunnel syndrome and Petltioner was in need of surgery. In regard to eausaltty, Dr. Beatty

stated he had reviewed Petitioner's Job desenptlon ‘which was ‘provided by Respondent and
opmed there was a causal relatlonshlp between Petlttoners job duties and the upper extrermty
condltlons he dlagnosed and treated (Petttloner s Exhlblt 3 pp 15 ~23)

Respondent uut:ally aceepted Petttzoners carpal tunnel and cub1tal tunnel syndrome condttlons
as being compensable and paid medical bills and temporary total disability benefits. However, at
trial, Respondent disputed hablhty on the baS1s of aoeldent nottee and causal relationship
‘(Arbttrator s Exh1b1t 1)

In regard to Pet1tloners neck/cervical spine condltlon Petttloner test1ﬁed he has had neck
problems for a number of years. On September 30, 2001, _Petltloner went to the ER of Alton
J_a_c'k.ie'Nash v. SIUE o EETRE | WC 36053
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Memorial Hospital because of neck pain. X-rays were taken which revealed mild degenerative

disc disease at C5 and C7, minimal marginal spurring and mild facet osteoarthritis (Respondent's
Exhibit 18) :

) Pet1t10ner was subsequently seen by Dr. Rajmkam Patel an mtermst on October 1, 2001. Dr.
Patel diagnosed Petitioner as having sustained a neck muscle strain. Dr. Patel prescribed
medication for both Petitioner's neck symptoms and depression (Respondent's Exhibit 14).

Petitioner was later seen by Dr. Daniel Scodary, a neurosurgeon, on February 8, 2010, for neck
symptoms. At that time, Petitioner advised Dr. Scodary the symptoms had started three months
prior. Dr. Scodary reviewed an MRI scan of Petitioner's cervical spine (the date of the scan was
not indicated) and opined it revealed mild stenosis and degenerative disc disease. Dr. Scodary

recommended Petitioner be referred to Dr. Gregory Stynowick, a pain management specialist
(Petxtloner s Exhibit 14). :

Petitioner was seen by Dr. Patel on Apnl 28, 2010, who evaluated him for both his carpal tunnel
syndrome and neck symptoms. Dr. Patel opined Petitioner had cervical radiculopathy and that he
should return to Dr. Scodary (Respondent's Exhibit 14).

Dr. Scodary saw Petitioner on April 29, 2010, and noted Petitioner had not been seen by Dr.
Stynowick as he had recommended. He renewed his recommendation Petitioner go to Dr.
Stynowick (Petitioner's Exhibit 14).

Dr. Stynowick saw Petitioner on May 6, 2010. At that time, Dr. Stynowick administered an

epidural steroid injection at C7-T1. He also ordered an MRI scan of Petitioner's cervical spine
(Petitioner's Exhibit 15).

The MRI was performed on May 12, 2010. According to the radiologist, there were no disc
herniations, but disc bulges at C3-C4, C5-C6 and C6-C7 (Petitioner's Exhibit 16).

Dr. Stynowick subsequently saw Petitioner in May/June, 2010 and administered additional
epidural steroid injections as well as medial branch nerve blocks. Dr. Stynowick diagnosed
Petitioner with cervical radiculitis and cervical spondylosis. He directed Petitioner to follow up

with Dr. Scodary (Petitioner's Exhibit 15). However, Petitioner did not follow up with Dr,
Scodary.

At frial, Petitioner testified that on February 18, 2011 (which he later said may have been
February 17, 2011), he was pushing a wheeled cart that had a number of chairs stacked on it.

Some chairs fell off of the cart striking Petitioner in the shoulder and neck area and caused him
to fall to the ground.

As previously noted herein, Respondent tendered into evidence a Notice of Injury dated
November 16, 2010, which noted Petitioner sustained repetitive trauma to his neck/arms and
indicated that date of accident of November 4, 2009 (Respondent's Exhibit 6). Respondent
tendered into evidence a First Report of Injury dated February 10, 2011, which indicated

Jackie Nash v. SIUE 11 WC 36053
Page 4
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.Petltroner sustamed "Repettttve Motron" to the neck and 1ndrcated a date of aeeldent of
November4 2009 (Respondent‘s Exhlbrt 7) :

.Respondent tendered mto evrdence a Notlee of In_]ury completed/srgned by Pet1t1oner dated
‘March 7, 2011, ~which mdrcated Petltloner sustained an injury on February 17, 2011, when some
“carts” fell on' him causing him to sustain an injury to his right hand/wnst and nght There was
no reference to Petmoner haymg sustalned a neok 1n_]ury (Respondent s Exiublt 10)

._Respondent tendered mto ev1dence a wrtness statement dated February 17 2011 of Edward

“Florian, ong of: Petrtloners co-workers Flonan noted. Petttroner ‘was moving chair haulers and
that he slrpped and fell forward. He provided assistance to Petitioner afterward and noted his

- wrist (he did not specify nght or left) was swollen and brulsed Fionan d1d not note Petltroner
' had sustamed a neck mjury (Respondent s Exh1b1t 11) s

: Petitloner sought medwal treatment at the ER of Alton Memorral Hospltal on February 17 2011
According to the hospltal record, Petitioner fell on his ouitstretched right hand. He was dlagnosed
with abrasions, a wrist sprain and chronic carpa1 tunnel syndrome There was 1o reference in the
record to Petmoner havrng any neck symptoms (Respondent‘s Exhrbrt 18)

'At the dn‘ectton of Re3pondent Pentroner ‘was exammed by Dr Dav1d Robson an orthopedlc
surgeon, on September 6,2012. In connectron with his ‘examination of Petitioner, Dr. Robson
. revrewed medlcal records provrded to hnn by Respondent Dr Robson also revrewed lnformatron
. Robson noted Petrtloner was walkmg mto a classroom, shpped/feil in water and rnjured hrs Ieft
wtist and neck. Dr: Robson noted  the First Report .of Injury in whroh Petrtroner claimed the
-repetrtlve motion requrred by his JOb caused him to ‘sustain a neck i injury on November 4, 2009.

Dr. Robson also’ noted that 'on February 17, 2011 Petitioner ‘was pushing chairs'on a doIly and

some of the chiairs ‘fell forward onto Petrtroners nght arm/wrtst (Petlnoners Exhrbrt 5;
DepOSrtron Exhibrt 2) e _

Dr Robson dragnosed Petltroner wrth cervrcal spondylosrs In regard to. causahty, Dr Robson
noted Petitioner hiad conﬂlctlng dates of injury as to which caused his neck symptoms. He noted
Petitioner claimed his neck pain began on November 4, 2009, but the record indicated Petitioner
ﬁrst reported neck pain on July 23, 2008. Dr Robson noted that, in regard to the February 17,
2011; accident, Petitioner on.ly reported an injury to his rrght wrist/arm, nothlng regarding the
cervical spme ‘Dr. Robson opined Petitioner's cervical spine condition was not related to the
repetmve motron of Petrtloner s _]Ob (Petrtloner s Exhrblt 5 Deposmon Exlnbrt 2) '

On November 26 2012 Petitioner was evaluated by Dr Davrd Raskas an orthopedlc surgeon
Petitioner informed Dr. Raskas that he sustained an accident in 2009 when he slipped and fell
backwards and sustamed an injury to his neck and shoulder (Petitioner was, in fact, apparently
referrmg to the accident of July 23, 2008). Petitioner also informed Dr. Raskas that in 2011 a

stack of chairs fell on him causmg hun to sustain mJuries to his right wrist and neck (Petitioner's
Exhibit 6). :

}aokleNashv SIVE . 11 WC 36053
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When seen by Dr. Raskas, Petitioner complained of a decreased range of motion of his neck and
shoulders. Dr. Raskas ordered x-rays of the cervical spine which revealed a spondylolisthesis at
C7-T1, degenerative disc disease at C5-C6 and C6-C7 and retrolisthesis at C5-C6. Dr. Raskas

opined Petitioner had C8 radiculopathy and recommended a CT myelogram of the cervical spine
(Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Dr. Raskas saw Petitioner on December 5, 2012, and reviewed the CT myelogram. He opined it
revealed a herniated disc at C4-C5 with severe spinal stenosis, but that most of Petitioner's
symptoms were coming from the C7-T1 level. He recommended Petitioner undergo some nerve

root blocks at C5 and C8, but indicated he might recommend Petitioner undergoing a fusion at
C4-C5 and C7-T1 (Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Petitioner was seen by Dr. Barry Feinberg, a pain management specialist, on December 17, 2012.
Dr. Feinberg diagnosed Petitioner with cervical radiculopathy and administered a series of
epidural steroid injections (Petitioner's Exhibit 7).

Dr. Raskas continued to treat Petitioner. On September 20, 2013, Dr. Raskas performed surgery
which consisted of a partial vertebrectomy at C4 and C7, anterior discectomies and fusions at
C5-C6 and C6-C7, a fusion at C7-T1 and plating from C4 to T1 (Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Dr. Raskas saw Petitioner following surgery, but when he evaluated Petitioner on July 28, 2014,
he opined the fusion had not fully healed. Ultimately, Dr. Raskas performed a second surgery on
December 4, 2014, a fusion with instrumentation at C4-C5 (Petitioner's Exhibit 6; Petitioner's
Exhibit 1, Deposition Exhibit 2).

Following the second surgery, Petitioner continued to be treated by Dr. Raskas and Dr. Feinberg.
When Dr. Raskas saw Petitioner on April 20, 2015, he opined the fusion the solid, but
recommended Petitioner continue treating with Dr. Feinberg (Petitioner's Exhibit 6).

Dr. Feinberg saw Petitioner and administered facet injections at C3-C4 from June, 2015, through
February, 2016. Petitioner did experience some relief of his symptoms (Petitioner’s Exhibit 7).

At the direction of Respondent, Petitioner was again examined by Dr. Robson on June 2, 2015.
Dr. Robson noted Petitioner had undergone two fusion procedures performed by Dr. Raskas

since his prior examination. Petitioner continued to complain of pain of 5 out of 10 (Petitioner's
Exhibit 5; Deposition Exhibit 3).

Dr. Robson again opined as to causality. In regard to the accident of July 23, 2008, Dr. Robson
noted Petitioner did not complain of any neck symptoms subsequent to the accident, only wrist
pain. In regard to the repetitive trauma injury with the date of accident of November 4, 2009, Dr.
Robson opined it was difficult to determine within a degree of medical certainty whether
Petitioner sustained a neck injury because of repetitive trauma. He opined Petitioner had pre-

existing cervical spondylosis which caused him to have neck pain (Petitioner's Exhibit 5;
Deposition Exhibit 3).

Jackie Nash v. STUE 11 WC 36053
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On July 12, 2019 Dr. Raskas prepared a medzcal report in Whlch He. opmed he had released
Petitioner from care-and Petitioner was at:MML He also noted Petitioner would require pain

management in the form of" medlcatlons and/or m}ect;ions because of Pehtmners ehrome pam
(Pet1t1oners Exhlblt 28) : R :

'Petmoners counsel had Pennoner evaluated by J Stephen Dolan, a vocat;onal rehablhtatton '

.expert ‘on’April .10, 2018. Dolan: reviewed . Petitioner's education/work: h1story and - various
" medical reports/records provided to. him by Petitioner's counsel He also adm1mstered a nmnber :
~of tests to Petitioner, Dolan noted Petitioner: was subject to numerous' restrictions, had POOT
“acadermic: sktlls and had’ worked pmrnamly as'a mamtenance/ groundskeeper ‘but had prevmusly _
‘worked as a truck. dnver He opmed Petitioner did not have aecess to a reasonably stable labor :
: market (Petmoner s Exlub:t 4 Deposmon Exl'ubzt 2) :

- .Dr Raskas was deposed on March 9 2015 and hlS deposmon testlmony was reeewed 1nto
- ev1dence at trial: In regard | to his d:agnoms and treatment of Petitioner; Dr. Raskas' testlmony
* was consistent w1th his medical records and he reafﬁnned the opinions contained therein. When .

questloned about the }nstory Petltioner prov1ded to him, Dr, Raskas testified Petitioner- adv1sed -

“that’in 2009 he shpped and fell backwards on some " liquid injuring }us neck:and shoulder. L

: .;Petiuoner also informed him that in 2010, but it was actually February 17, 2011, Petitionerhad a

- stack of chairs fall on him. Dr. Raskas opmed the accidents could have eaused or aggravated the _
“condition in Pentmners cervzcal spme Wthh led }um to performmg two surgenes (Petmoners S

. Exlnb1tl pp 6, 21-22)

o _On cross~exam1nat1on Dr Raskas agreed that 1f the hxstory of the acmdents Petltloner prov1ded '

. to hir and his condition prior to them was different than what Petitioner had advised, his opinion |

regardmg causahty Imght ehange Dr. Raskas also testified he did not beheve Petmoner had any '
treatment for cervxcal spme symptoms pnor to 2009 (Petmoner ] Exlnbxt 1; pp 29 30 32)

Dr Femberg was deposed on June 3 2016 and hxs deposmon test1mony was reoewed into
evidence at trial. In regard 1o the treatment prov1ded to Petitioner, Dr, Feinberg's testimony was
consistent ‘with ‘his  medical records: and he reaffirmed the: opmlons contained : therem Dr.

Feinberg testified that When he initially evaluated Petitioner on- Deeember 12, 2012 Petmoner
gave a history of slipping and falling on some water which caused him to hit his head, neck ‘and
shoulder on‘a. doorframe. Petitioner also advised hlS cond1txon worsened because of- his _]Ob dut;es '
and was agam m_}ured when a staek of chalrs fell on hlm (Petztzoner s Exhlblt 2;p ’7)

In regard to causahty, Dr. Femberg testlﬁed the two aeeidents could have caused or contrlbuted
to Petitioner's. neck condition. He based this on the history Petitioner provided to him and ‘the
symptoms Petltloner had for wluch he had treated him (Petltzoner s Exh1b1t 2; p 21).

On cross- exammatlon Dr. Femberg tesnﬁed Petitioner mltlally mformed h1rn the a001dent
occurred in July, 2008, and February, 2009, but he subsequently advised him the accident
involving the chairs occurred in early 2011. Petitioner also informed him he had no neck
problems prior to sustaining the slip and fall in the water (Petitioner’s Exhibit 2; pp 24-25).

Jackie Nash v. § STUE o 11 WC 36053
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J. Stephen Dolan was deposed on July 18, 2018, and his deposition testimony was received into
evidence at trial. Dolan's testimony was consistent with his report and he reaffirmed the opinions
contained therein. Specifically, Dolan testified Petitioner was permanently and totally disabled
from gainful employment (Petitioner's Exhibit 4; p 28).

Dr. Robson was deposed on January 10, 2019, and his deposition testimony was received into
evidence at trial, On direct examination, Dr. Robson's testimony was consistent with his medical
report and he reaffirmed the opinions contained therein. Dr. Robson testified Petitioner had
multiple level spondylosis in the neck at C4-C5, C5-C6 and C6-C7. He stated Petitioner
informed him that he had sustained an injury on November 4, 2009, as a result of prolonged use
of a weed eater, but had also sustained an accident on Iuly 23, 2008, when he slipped. He noted
that Petitioner had undergone an x-ray of the cervical spine in 2001 and, when Petitioner had an
MRI performed on November 30, 2009, Petitioner indicated he had neck symptoms for six to
eight months prior. Based upon the preceding, Dr. Robson could not attribute Petitioner's
cervical spine symptoms to an accident of November 4, 2009 (Petitioner's Exhibit 5; p 11).

On cross-examination, Dr. Robson agreed that if Petitioner slipped and fell in water striking his
head and back of his neck on the doorframe, this could aggravate the pre-existing spondylosis in
the cervical spine. He also agreed that if Petitioner used a weed eater four to six hours a day

during the summer that this could cause his spondylosis to become symptomatic (Petitioner's
Exhibit 5; pp 14-15).

At trial, Petitioner testified he has not worked since October 20, 2012, primarily because of his
neck symptoms. Petitioner apparently began to draw long term disability benefits (not temporary
total disability) at that time. Petitioner testified that he was subsequently informed that those
payments were going to be terminated and, for that reason, he made the decision to retire. The
reason he gave was that he would have no other income. Respondent's counsel tendered into
evidence a form (which was not signed by Petitioner) but which indicated a retirement date of

July 1, 2018 (Respondent's Exhibit 17).
Petitioner testified he has not been released to return to work by any of his treating physicians.

Petitioner still continues to complain of severe neck pain as well as numbness in both hands and
forearms.

Conclusions of Law
In regard to disputed issues (C) and (F) the Arbitrator makes the following conclusion of law:
The Arbitrator concludes Petitioner sustained an accidental injury arising out of and in the course
of his employment by Respondent on February 17, 2011, but that his current condition of 1ll-

being in regard to his cervical spine is not causally related to same or his work activities.

In support of this conclusion the Arbitrator notes the following:

Petitioner previously sought treatment for cervical spine symptoms in 2001, which was prior to
his being employed by Respondent in 2004.

Jackie Nash v. SIUE 11 WC 36053
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' .It is extremely dtfﬁeult to- determme w1th any certa1nty What Petltloner is: elamamg to be the o
_work-related cause of his cervical spine condition, the accident of. July 23, 2008, the accrdent of -
February 17, 2{)11 repetitive trauma with an undetenmned date of mamfestatlon or some
.'combmatlon of the precedmg : SRR :

: The onset of Pentloners cerv1eal sptne eond1t10n whlle employed by Respondent earmot be

. '_determmed with any certalnty However the. medtcal records for- the -treatmenit - Petttloner S

Z '_recerved after the accident of July 23, 2008 only make reference to Pet1t1oner havrng leﬁ wr1st' '
: -patn There Was no reference to Petrtloner havmg any neck symptoms

' .Whﬂe Dr Raskas testlﬁed the aemdent of 2009 when Petrttoner shpped and feli in Water o
.(actually refemng to the: accident of July 23, 2008) could have aggravated Petitioner's cervical
spine- condition. - “This opinion is underrmned by the fact’ Petitioner- sought no- treatment for :

- '_eerv1ea1 splne eomplamts Hnmedlately or shortly aﬁer the accndent of Iuly 23 2008

: _ The preeedmg analysrs is also apphcable to the opmlon of Dr Femberg regardmg causahty

Petrtroner sought mecheal treatment for cervxcal spme symptorns in February, 2010 whrch _
~Petitioner noted started some :three months prior. This may be the ba31s for Petltloner at gne .

S pomt m tlme aitegmg a date of ac01dent of November 4, 2009

: '.'_Pet1tloner testrﬁed he sustalned an mjury on February 17, 2011 W}nie he was pushmg a Wheeied o

¢art that had ehatrs stacked “on it and"a: number of chairs fell off: striking him.- Petitioner .

; qubsequently completed/sngned a Notrce of Injury on ‘March 7, 2011 “which deserlbed the": .
- accident. ' A witness to the aceldent Edward Flonan a co~worker completed a statement
. :descnbmg the a001dent L o . R

p In both the Notrce of Injury and Flonans statement the only rnJury noted Was o Pet1t1oners
: rlght hand/wnst There was 1o referenee to Petrtloner sustalmng an mjury to h1s neck '

S ;In the medrcai reeords for treatment Petrtroner recewed shortly after the acetdent of February 17,

o 2011 there was no reference to Petltroner havmg any neck symptoms

'Dr Raskas testrﬁed the aec:1dent of February 17, 2011 eould have eaused or aggravated :

Petitioner's cervical spine condition; however, this opinion is undermmed by the fact Petitioner .

_only eompiamed of right hand pain shortly ‘afterward and did not compIaln of any. neck
o symptoms in sprte of the faet of hts havmg recelved treatment for neck symptorns in 2010

The preeedmg ana1y51s is also applrcable to the opinion of Dr. Fernberg regardmg eausahty

Dr. Raskas did not opme Whether Petitioner's eerv1cal splne condttron was related to Petltroner s
repetrtrve work dutles :

When Dr Robson Respondent's Section 12 examiner, was deposed he agreed on cross-
examination that if Petitioner slipped and fell in water strlkmg the back of his head and neck this
could have aggravated the pre-exrstmg spondy1031s in the cervreal splne However as w1th Dr

_JaekleNashv sE -';_1wc 36053
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Raskas, this opinion is undermined by the lack of any neck symptoms shortly after the accident
of July 23, 2008.

On cross-examination, Dr. Robson did agree Petitioner's weed eating for four to six hours a day
during the summer months could make his spondylosis symptomatlc However, this opinion
only suggests that this specific act1v1ty could have caused some increase in symptoms, but it does
not state whether this would have been a permanent aggravation of same.

Based upon the preceding, the Arbitrator concludes Petitioner's cervical spine condition is not
work-related.

In regard to disputed issues (E) and (L) the Arbitrator makes no conclusions of law as these
issues are rendered moot because of the Arbitrator's conclusion of law in disputed issues (C) and

.

W [

William R. Gallagher, Arbitrafor

Jackie Nash v. SIUE 11 WC 36053
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Page 1
S_TATE OF ILL.INO.IS ) _ D Affirm and adopt (no changes) D Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
: ) SS | XI Afﬁrm with changes o D Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(2)) '
COUNTY OF MADISON ) . D Reverse S : D Second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
: S : . D PTD/Fatal denied - :
DModlfy - o _' s IZNoneofthe above
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION -
' :-Jackle Nash
Petl_troner, |
e Nouwems
2OI§%?CC04 4 B
- "Re_s_pondent.

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

: Tlmely Petrtxon for: Revrew havmg been ﬁied by the Petitroner hereln and notlce glven to
B -all partres ‘the’ Commrssron aﬁer consrdermg the i issues of causatlon TTD, medlcal expenses,
prospectlve medical expenses ‘and ‘nature and: extent, and. ‘being’ advised of the facts and law, -
“modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator, as stated hereln all else othermse afﬁnned and adopted

‘satd deczslon bemg attached hereto and made a part hereof : ' Ll

The Arbltrator found that “. Petmoner sustamed a repetltlve trauma 1njury to hlS nght
and left elbows and’ hands arising out of and in the course of his employment by Respondent and
his current condition of ilk: berng in regard to his nght and left elbows and hands is causally -
related to same.” (Arb.Dec. [Addendnm} 14WC27733, p. 8) “The Arbitrator noted that .. the
date of manifestation alleged in the Amended Appllcatlon is February 16; 2012; however it is
not possrble to determine how this was the appropriate date of mamfestatwn ‘The Arbitrator
does note that in [compamon claim} 11 WC 36053, the initial Apphcatron alleged a date of
accident (manlfestatlon) of February 18, 2010, consxstmg of repetitive trauma to both wrist and
elbows, but this was subsequently amended to allege. an injury to the body as a whole when
Petitioner was struck by falling chalrs The preceding makes it difficult to determine what the
approprlate date of mamfestatlon should be; however, it is clear that Petrtloner s bilateral hand
and elbow eond1t10ns are work-related as noted byt both Dr Beatty and Dr. Sudekum ”? (Id p.9).

Whrle the Comm1ss1on agrees that Petrtloner proved by a preponderance of the credlble
evidence that he sustained accidental injuries arising out of and in the course of his employment
and that a causal relatlonshlp existed between said accident and Petitioner’s bilateral carpal and
cubital tunnel syndrome conditions, we disagree with the Arbitrator’s decision to utilize
February 16, 2012 as the date of accident or manifestation in this case. The Commission notes
that there is no evidence to support the use of said date and that the more appropnate date of
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mamfestatlon or the date on whtch both the fact of the mJury and the causal relationshrp of the
:1n]ury to the employment would have become plamly apparerit t0°a reasonable person — was
February 16,.2010, the date on ‘which Petitioner underwent an. EMG/nerve conduction study
whrch revealed ﬁndmgs con51stent wrth bllateral znedtan nerve compressmn at the wnsts

As such the Connmsswn modlﬁes the decrslon of the Arbltrator to ﬁnd that Pentroner |
sustamed acmdental injuries arrsrng out.of and in the course of hls employment and that said
_ accrdental 1n3urtes mamfested themselves on or about February 16, 2010 : o

Conl Frnally, the Cornm1ss1on corrects a computatlonal error. at page 2 of the Arbrtrator s Form'_ -

- decision, in the Order section, to show: that the number of weeks of permanency ‘awarded is equal .
‘to 104, 25 weeks (not 101 25), based on 10% loss of use of both ‘hands (